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Chair’s Foreword 
This report presents a summary of the committee’s examination of the budget estimates 
relating to the Health and Ambulance Services Portfolio and the Environment, Tourism, 
Science and Innovation Portfolio for the 2025-26 financial year.  

The committee has recommended that the proposed expenditure, as detailed in the 
Appropriation Bill 2025 for the committee’s areas of responsibility, be agreed to by the 
Legislative Assembly without amendment.  

Consideration of the budget estimates allows for the public examination of the responsible 
Ministers and the chief executive officers of agencies within the committee’s portfolio 
areas. This was undertaken through pre-hearing questions on notice to the respective 
ministers and a public hearing on 1 August 2025. The committee was assisted by the 
Minister for Health and Ambulance Services and Minister for the Environment and Tourism 
and Minister for Science and Innovation, the Directors-General of their departments, Chief 
Executives and other departmental officers. On behalf of the committee, I thank the 
ministers and other departmental officers for their assistance and cooperation throughout 
this process. 

This year’s budget shows record spending and capital investment in both the Health and 
Ambulances Portfolio and the Environment, Tourism, Science and Innovation Portfolio.  

Queensland Health has a budgeted spend of over $33 billion in 2025-26 to support 
operating expenses and capital investment. This record funding commitment will ensure 
the future viability of Queensland’s public health system, and support Queenslanders’ 
access to health services no matter where they live. Highlights include:  

• $664.1 million in 2025-26 as part of $2.647 billion over 5 years to fund the Timely 
Investment of Infrastructure Maintenance Program to support maintenance, 
replacement and refurbishment of Queensland’s Health’s existing assets  

• $1.783 billion in 2025-26 for new hospital infrastructure in furtherance of the 
Hospital Rescue Plan 

• $342.3 million in 2025-26 for the Hospital Car Parking Program 

• $179.9 million in 2025-26 for the Building Rural and Remote Health Program  

• $124.7 million for the Better Care Together Plan to expand mental health facilities 
and treatment spaces and measures to support suicide prevention; and 

• Funding to support an additional 4,704 FTE staff across Queensland Health. 
The record appropriation of $1.13 billion for the Department of Environment, Tourism, 
Science and Innovation will support ongoing measures to drive science and innovation in 
Queensland, expand Queensland’s protected estate, strengthen wildlife protection, and 
implement Queensland’s Waste Strategy to reduce landfill and increase recycling. The 
budget also provides $446 million to kickstart the 20-year tourism plan, Destination 2045.  

I would also like to thank the members of the committee for their hard work and valuable 
contribution to the estimates process, and other members whose participation in the 
hearing provided additional scrutiny of the estimates.  
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Finally, I thank the committee’s secretariat and other Parliamentary Service staff for their 
assistance throughout the estimates process. 

 

Rob Molhoek 
Chair  
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Executive Summary  
The Appropriation Bill 2025 was introduced by the Honourable David Janetzki MP, 
Treasurer, Minister for Energy and Minister for Home Ownership. Appropriations 
pertaining to health and ambulance services and environment, tourism, science and 
innovation were referred to the Health, Environment and Innovation Committee (the 
committee) by the Legislative Assembly on 27 June 2025. Appropriations for these 
portfolios are approximately 21.3% of the government’s total appropriations for 2025-26, 
which are $105.4 billion. 

The estimates process is one of the key mechanisms to examine government expenditure, 
performance and effectiveness. By examining and reporting on the proposed expenditures 
contained in the Appropriation Bill the committee assists the Parliament in its scrutiny of 
the Government's proposed expenditure. 

This report provides an overview of the examination process undertaken by the 
committee. This included 8.5 hours of a public hearings on 1 August 2025, attended by 
the Minister for Health and Ambulance Services and Minister for the Environment and 
Tourism and Minister for Science and Innovation, Directors-General, and the chief 
executives of relevant schedule 7 entities. 

The committee made 1 recommendation, found at page vi of this report, that the proposed 
expenditure referred to the committee be agreed to by the Legislative Assembly without 
amendment.  
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Recommendations 

Recommendation 1 .................................................................................................. 3 
The committee recommends that the proposed expenditure, as detailed in the 
Appropriation Bill 2025 for the committee’s areas of responsibility, be agreed to by the 
Legislative Assembly without amendment.  
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Glossary 
Committee  Health, Environment and Innovation Committee 

DETSI 
Department of the Environment, Tourism, Science and 
Innovation 

HHS Hospital and Health Service 

OHO Office of the Health Ombudsman 

QIMR 
The Council of the Queensland Institution of Medical 
Research 

QMHC Queensland Mental Health Commission 

QAS Queensland Ambulance Service 

SDS Service Delivery Statement 

TEQ Tourism and Events Queensland 
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1. Overview of the Budget Estimates Process 
The Appropriation Bill 2025 was introduced by the Honourable David Janetzki MP, 
Treasurer, Minister for Energy and Minister for Home Ownership, and was referred to the 
Health, Environment and Innovation Committee (the committee) by the Legislative 
Assembly on 27 June 2025.  

The estimates process is one of the key mechanisms to examine government expenditure, 
performance and effectiveness. By examining and reporting on the proposed expenditures 
contained in the Appropriation Bill the committee assists the Parliament in its scrutiny of 
the Government's proposed expenditure. Total appropriation for 2025-26 is 
$105,417,248,000.1   

The table and figures below set out the appropriations examined by the committee.  

Table 1: All appropriations examined by this committee, 2025-26 
 

Department or entity Vote 2025-2026 
($'000) 

Queensland Health (including ambulance services) 21,399,892 
Department of the Environment, Tourism, Science and Innovation 1,133,288 

Total appropriation overseen by this committee 22,533,180 
Source: Appropriation Bill 2025 

Figure 1. Budget Appropriations by committee, 2025-26 

 
Source: Appropriation Bill 2025 

 

 
1   Appropriation Bill 2025, s 2(1). 

Governance, Energy and 
Finance Committee

State Development, Infrastructure 
and Works Committee

Justice, Integrity and 
Community Safety Committee

Primary Industries and 
Resources Committee

Local Government, Small 
Business and Customer 

Service Committee

Health, Environment and 
Innovation Committee

Education, Arts and 
Communities Committee



2025-26 Budget Estimates - Appropriation Bill 2025 

Health, Environment and Innovation Committee 2 

The committee’s examination of the Appropriation Bill 2025 is in relation to the: 

• Health and Ambulance Services 

• Environment, Tourism, Science and Innovation.2 
Figure 2: Departmental appropriations examined by this committee, 2025-26 

 

1.1. Inquiry Process 
On 1 August 2025, the committee conducted a public hearing and took evidence about 
the proposed expenditure from the Honourable Tim Nicholls MP, Minister for Health and 
Ambulance Services, the Honourable Andrew Powell MP, Minister for the Environment 
and Tourism and Minister for Science and Innovation, and other witnesses.3 This was in 
accordance with a motion of the Legislative Assembly on 27 June 2025 which determined 
the program for estimates. This provided for 8.5 hours of examination over the portfolios 
of both Ministers, between 9 a.m. and 7.15 p.m. as follows:  

• Health for 3 hours  

• Ambulance Services for 1 hour  

• Environment for 1.5 hours  

• Science and Innovation for 1 hour; and 

• Tourism for 2 hours 
This report summarises the estimates referred to the committee and highlights some of 
the issues the committee examined. The committee considered information contained in: 

• budget papers 

• answers to pre-hearing questions on notice 

• evidence taken at the hearing; and 

• additional information given in relation to answers. 
Prior to the public hearing, the committee provided the Minister for Health and Ambulance 
Services and the Minister for the Environment and Minister for Science and Innovation 

 
2   Legislative Assembly of Queensland, Standing Rules and Orders of the Legislative Assembly, 

Schedule 6. 
3   Queensland Parliament, Record of Proceedings, Estimates – Health, Environment and Innovation 

Committee – Brisbane, 1 August 2025. 

$21.40 billion

$1.13 billion

Queensland Health

Department of the Environment, Tourism, Science
and Innovation
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with questions on notice in relation to the estimates.  Responses to all the questions were 
received.4 

Answers to the committee’s pre-hearing questions on notice; documents tabled during the 
hearing; answers and additional information provided by Ministers after the hearing are 
included in a volume of additional information tabled with this report and are available on 
the committee webpage. 

In keeping with Schedule 7 of the Standing Orders,5 the chief executives of the following 
entities were present at the hearing on 1 August 2025 to assist the committee with its 
consideration of the portfolio estimates: the 16 Hospital and Health Services (HHS), Health 
and Wellbeing Queensland, Office of the Health Ombudsman (OHO), Queensland Mental 
Health Commission (QMHC) and Tourism and Events Queensland (TEQ).  

1.2. Participation by other Members of Parliament  
The following non-committee Members participated in the public hearing sessions with 
leave of the committee: 

• Hon Stephen Miles MP, Leader of the Opposition, Member for Murrumba 

• Hon Mick De Brenni MP, Member for Springwood 

• Hon Mark Bailey MP, Member for Miller 

• Dr Christian Rowan MP, Member for Moggill 

• Mr Michael Berkman MP, Member for Maiwar  

• Hon Leanne Linard MP, Member for Nudgee; and  

• Mr Michael Healy MP, Member for Cairns. 

1.3. Should the proposed expenditure be agreed to?  
In accordance with Standing Order 187(1), the committee is required to determine and 
report on whether the proposed expenditure referred to it are agreed to. 

 
Recommendation 1 
The committee recommends that the proposed expenditure, as detailed in 
the Appropriation Bill 2025 for the committee’s areas of responsibility, be 
agreed to by the Legislative Assembly without amendment. 

 
4   See Volume of additional information tabled with this report. The response from the Minister for 

Health and Ambulance Services, to pre-hearing Question on Notice No. 12, contained errors in the 
data presented and the committee resolved to redact question 12 in the +publication of responses 
pre-hearing questions on notice and direct the Minister for Health and Ambulance Services to 
provide an amended answer by the end of the examination of the health portfolio on 1 August 2025. 
At the end of his examination, the Minister for Health and Ambulance Services tabled a response to 
pre-hearing Question on Notice No. 12 (tabled paper 14). The Minister also tabled an amended 
response to pre-hearing Question on Notice No. 2 (tabled paper 13). 

5   Schedule 7 of the Standing Rules and Orders of the Legislative Assembly sets out a list of statutory 
entities to which direct questioning of chief executives at estimates applies.   
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2. Minister for Health and Ambulance Services  
The Honourable Timothy (Tim) Nicholls MP, Minister for Health and Ambulance Services, 
has responsibility for Queensland Health.  

 

2.1. Queensland Health  
Queensland Health is comprised of the Department of Health, the Queensland Ambulance 
Service, and 16 independent HHS situated across the state. The remainder of the 
Queensland Health portfolio includes the QMHC, OHO, QIMR and Health and Wellbeing 
Queensland.6 Queensland Health applies its resources to the following 7 service areas:7  

• Inpatient care – services provided to patients under a formal admission process, 
either in hospital or the patient’s home. 

• Outpatient care – examinations, consultations, treatments or other services 
provided to patients who are not currently admitted to hospitals that require 
specialist care, including associated allied health care. 

• Emergency care – the treatment of acute and urgent illness in an emergency care 
setting, provided in hospital emergency departments as well as other facilities 
(such as remote nurse run clinics, general practice, ambulance services, retrieval 
services). 

• Sub and non-acute care – rehabilitation care, palliative care, geriatric evaluation 
and management care, psychogeriatric care and maintenance care. 

• Mental Health and Alcohol and Other Drug Services – Mental Health Services 
deliver assessment, treatment and rehabilitation services in community, inpatient 
and extended treatment settings to provide appropriate care for symptoms of 
mental illness and facilitate recover. Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Services 

 
6   Queensland Budget 2025-26, Service Delivery Statement (SDS), Queensland Health, p 2.   
7   Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, see summary of services area expenses at 

p 12 and overview of each service area at pp 3-10 and 31.   

Minister for Health and Ambulance Services

Department of 
Health

Queensland 
Ambulance Service

HHSs and other 
statutory bodies

Queensland Health
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provide prevention, treatment and harm reduction responses in community-based 
services. 

• Prevention, Primary and Community Care – a range of services provided by 
healthcare professionals in socially appropriate and accessible ways and include 
health promotion, illness prevention, disease control, immunisation, screening, oral 
health services, environmental health, research, advocacy and community 
development, allied health, assessment and care planning and self-management 
support. 

• Ambulance Services – the delivery of pre-hospital emergency medical care and 
ambulance transport services, including aeromedical retrieval and transport 
services and the Health Contact Centre (which uses phone and online delivery 
models to provide 24/7 health assessment and information services). 

The objectives of these service areas are to:8  

• deliver a world-class health system for all Queenslanders, no matter where they 
live 

• foster an environment of empowerment across the portfolio so that frontline staff 
feel encouraged to advance local health solutions to local health problems 

• de-centralise resources and decision making where it is clinically safe to do so to 
ensure frontline staff are able to implement local health solutions for their local 
community 

• have a strong, well-functioning health system underpinned by a workforce that is 
expertly trained, valued and respected, and which grows across all disciplines to 
ensure the viability of the health system now and into the future 

2.2. Budget Overview 
Table 2, from the Appropriation Bill 2025, shows the total appropriation for Queensland 
Health for 2025-26, compared with 2024-25 budgeted and estimated actual 
appropriations. 

Table 2: Queensland Health appropriation for 2025-26 (source: Appropriate Bill 2025, sch 2, p17) 

Appropriations 
Budget 

2024-25 
$’000 

Est. Actual 
2024-25 

$’000 

Vote 
2025-26 

$’000 

Controlled Items    

 departmental services 17,172,970 18,375,029 19,133,126 

 equity adjustment 871,841 1,680,469 2,203,771 

Administered Items 88,887 92,712 62,995 

Vote 18,133,698 20,148,210 21,399,892 

 

  

 
8  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 1. 
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The health budget is a significant component of government spending constituting 20.3% 
of total appropriations. The health budget continues to face ongoing pressure with an 
increasing population and ageing population, which is increasing the demand for health 
services.9 

For Queensland Health, appropriation revenue is supplemented by other revenue 
streams, predominantly payments from the Commonwealth Government under the 
National Health Reform Agreement (NHRA). In 2025-26, NHRA payments are budgeted 
to be $7.531 billion, an increase of 6.5% on estimated actual receipts in 2024-25.10 Under 
the current NHRA, which is to be re-negotiated in the next year, the national growth cap 
for increases in commonwealth contributions is capped at 6.5%.11 

Following machinery of government changes, effective 1 November 2024, the Office for 
Women portfolio was transferred from the broader Queensland Health portfolio to the 
Department of Women, Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships and 
Multiculturalism.12 In 2024-25, the estimated actual expenditure for Office for Women was 
$3,227,000 (0.01% of Queensland’s Health controlled operating expenses in 2024-25).13  

2.2.1. Budget comparison  
The 2025-26 appropriation of $21.399 billion represents an increase on last year’s 
budgeted appropriations of approximately 18%.  

In 2025-26, budgeted total expenses for Queensland Health, including the Department of 
Health and the 16 HHSs, is $29.441 billion.14 This is a 10.2% increase on adjusted 
budgeted expenses for 2024-25.15  

Queensland Health is staffed by over 130,000 people16 across the state and has 114,734 
full time equivalent (FTE) positions for 2024-25, with this forecast to increase to 119,438 
in 2025-26; an increase of 4,704 FTE employees. These increases are to be spread 
across the Department of Health (which captures FTE positions listed for QIMR, QMHC, 
OHO and Health and Wellbeing Queensland), QAS and the 16 HHSs, as depicted in Table 
3 below.17  Employee expenses constitute 66.9% of Queensland Health’s operating 
expenses (a small increase from 65.9% of the adjusted budgeted expenses in 2024-25). 

  

 
9   Queensland Budget 2025-26, Budget Strategy and Outlook (Budget Paper 2, BP2), p 10. 
10  Queensland Budget 2025-26, Budget Strategy and Outlook (Budget Paper 2, BP2), p 91. 
11  Queensland Budget 2025-26, Budget Strategy and Outlook (Budget Paper 2, BP2), p 93. 
12  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 12, see footnote 3. 
13  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 12. 
14  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, pp 15, 22. 
15  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 22. 
16  See the Minister for Health and Ambulance Services response to pre-hearing question on notice no. 

16, with a total headcount of 133,932 people for Queensland Health 
17  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, pp 29, 38, 45, 52, 60, 67, 74, 81, 88, 95, 

102, 109, 116, 123, 130, 137, 144, 149, 155,161, 167. 
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Table 3: Staff allocations (FTE) across Queensland Health for 2025-26  

Agency 2024-25 Est Actual 
FTE 

2025-26 Budgeted 
FTE 

Increase  

(FTE) 

Department of Health  9,970 10,282 312  

QIMR 614 613 -1 

QMHC 46 46 0 

OHO 160 160 0 

Health and Wellbeing Queensland 69 69 0 

QAS 5,951 6,178 227 

Cairns and Hinterland HHS 6,075 6,100 25 

Central Queensland HHS 3,726 3,736 10 

Central West HHS 430 456 26 

Children's Health Queensland HHS 4,722 4,756 34 

Darling Downs HHS 5,787 5,797 10 

Gold Coast HHS 10,411 10,733 322 

Mackay HHS 2,910 2,995 85 

Metro North HHS 20,906 21,681 775 

Metro South HHS 17,664 17,779 115 

North West HHS 908 926 18 

South West HHS 880 885 5 

Sunshine Coast HHS 7,737 7,892 155 

Torres and Cape HHS 1,309 1,314 5 

Townsville HHS 6,336 6,378 42 

West Moreton HHS 5,107 5,170 63 

Wide Bay HHS 3,905 4,022 117 

TOTAL HHS 98,813 100,620 1,807 

TOTAL QUEENSLAND HEALTH 114,734 117,080 2,344 

The total projected FTEs across Queensland Health in Table 3, differ from budgeted 2025-
26 total FTE of 119,438 (a planned increase of 4,704 FTE), noted earlier. This may be 
because workforce planning is ongoing with additional FTE positions to be allocated as 
this planning is completed.18 

 
18  See the Minister for Health and Ambulance Services response to pre-hearing question on notice No. 

16, where the Minister stated, ‘I am advised that growth projections are being finalised and 
Queensland Health is working to complete a gap analysis and further planning for the pipeline of 
health workers’. 
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HHSs are established under the Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011 and are funded by 
Queensland Health under individual service agreements.  HHSs are responsible for 
delivering public health services in their respective regions. In 2025-26, Queensland 
Health will provide approximately $24.3 billion for HHS operations (up from $22.1 billion 
budgeted in 2024-25, a 9.9% increase).19 In addition to funding HHSs to deliver public 
health services, Queensland Health also provides funding to Mater Health to provide 
public health services.20  

The Department of Health delivers health system governance, workforce strategy and 
planning, statewide clinical health support services, information and communication 
technologies, health promotion and disease prevention strategy, health infrastructure 
planning and corporate support services.21 Details of services delivered by other 
agencies, including OHO, QMHC, QIMR and other statutory agencies can be found in the 
SDS. 

All staff are employed by Queensland Health and allocated across the Department of 
Health, Queensland Ambulance Service, HHSs and other statutory bodies. The funding 
provided to HHS includes employee expenses, which are recovered by Queensland 
Health from each of the respective HHSs.22  

2.2.2. Budget Highlights  
The 2025-26 budget highlights for Queensland Health include: 23 

Improving access to health services by investing in 
public hospital services to deliver emergency 
services, stabilise the elective surgery waitlist, 
improve access and flow and reduce ambulance 
ramping, including the following specific measures:  

• stabilise elective surgery waitlists and 
enhance the Surgery Connect Program 

• increased funding to Queensland 
Ambulance Service, including increasing 
the number of paramedics  

• stabilise bed capacity to improve patient 
flow 

Additional funding of $1.607 billion in 2025-26 
(as part of additional funding of $6.539 billion 
over four years), with specific funding of various 
priorities (as part of that $6.539 billion) 
including:  

• $1.752 billion over 4 years for stabilisation of 
the elective surgery waitlist 

• $812.9 million over 4 years for QAS 
workforce 

• $581.4 million over 2 years to stabilise bed 
and system capacity 

• $638.4 million over 4 years for the delivery 
of public health services at Mater Springfield 

 
19 Queensland Budget 2025-26, Budget Strategy and Outlook (Budget Paper 2, BP2), p 1. Also see 

respective allocations to HHSs in the SDS. 
20  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 2. 
21  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 2. 
22  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 16. This is reflected in the figures where 

total income and total expenses are recorded as $43.495 billion, more than the headline figure of 
$29.441 billion, inflated by ‘user charges and fees’ line item which incorporates the receipt of ‘labour 
recoveries’ from HHS as revenue, but which are also paid out as part of ‘supplies and services’ and 
‘employee expenses’. 

23  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 2, and Queensland Budget 2025-26, 
Budget Measures (Budget Paper 4), pp 76-82. 
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• operationalise 186 public hospital beds at 
the Springfield Mater Hospital  

• support tailored solutions to improve 
patient flow 

• improve patient and staff safety by uplifting 
the security officer and ambassador 
workforce across HHSs 

• $55 million over 2 years for the patient flow 
rapid response fund 

• $8.7 million over 3 years for the uplift of the 
security officer and Ambassador workforce 

Implementation of the Easier Access to Health 
Services Plan to deliver health services to 
Queenslanders when they need them. Services to be 
delivered through this funding include 7-day 
discharging, transit lounges, more CT and MRI 
machines, additional support for regional and rural 
GPs, and reinstating maternity services at Biloela and 
Cooktown Hospitals 

Additional funding of $21.24 million in 2025-26 
(as part of additional funding of $218.6 million 
over 4 years)  

Delivering the Healthy Kindy Kids program, which 
provides access for children to free vision, hearing 
and speech development checks in kindergartens 
and childcare centres 

Additional funding of $6.25 million in 2025-26 
(as part of total additional funding of $37.5 
million over 5 years from 2024–25)  

Additional funding for delivery of 8 Neuro Wellness 
Hubs across Queensland to provide neurological 
health services to support Queenslanders 
experiencing neurological conditions and increasing 
awareness for early detection  

Additional funding of $3.03 million in 2025-26 
(as part of additional funding of $10.5 million 
over 4 years)  

 

2.2.3. Capital program  
In 2025-26, Queensland Health’s budgeted total capital investment in built infrastructure 
and digital technologies is $3.667 billion24, including additional funding of $1.3429 billion.25 
This represents a 69.2% increase in capital investment compared to the 2024-25 
budgeted capital investment.26 This capital investment is part of the broader Hospital 
Rescue Plan, which aims to deliver 2,600 additional beds across metro, rural and regional 
Queensland.27  

Capital Investment highlights for 2025-26 from this additional investment (which are all 
part of the $18.526 billion investment over 5 years and outlined in the Hospital Rescue 
Plan) include:28  

• additional funding of $49 million to deliver capital for the Easier Access to Health 
Services plan (as part of $410.8 million over 4 years from 2024-25)  

 
24  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 14. 
25  Queensland Budget 2025-26, Budget Measures (Budget Paper 4), pp 119-122, being total additional 

investment as per the budgeted capital measures. 
26  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 14. 
27  Queensland Budget 2025-26, SDS, Queensland Health, p 13. 
28  Queensland Budget 2025-26, Budget Measures (Budget Paper 4), pp 119-122. 
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• additional funding of $11.3 million (as part of $38.5 million over 3 years) to deliver 
2 youth mental health facilities as part of the Step-up Step-down Program  

• additional funding of $178 million (as part of $355.2 million over 3 years) to deliver 
the Building Rural and Remote Health Program  

• additional funding of $24 million (as part of $146 million over 3 years) to deliver the 
Accelerated Infrastructure Delivery Program 

• additional funding of $675 million (as part of $2.647 billion in new funding across 5 
years) for the Timely Investment Infrastructure Maintenance Program, to support 
maintenance, replacement and refurbishment of Queensland Health’s existing 
assets 

• additional funding of $70 million (as part of $250 million over 4 years) to sustainably 
grow QAS and commission QAS infrastructure, including:  

• $45 million to commission 170 new and replacement ambulance vehicle 

• $23.7 million to deliver new ambulance stations and relief accommodation in 
regional and remote locations 

• $7.4 million to progress planning, design and construction for Beenleigh Central 
and Southport East ambulance stations and relocation of Springwood ambulance 
station 

• additional funding of $3.3 million to provide an additional 7 residential aged care 
beds as part of the Moura Multipurpose Health Service Aged Care expansion (as 
part of $16.7 million over 3 years) 

• additional funding of $332.3 million for the Hospital Car Parking Program (as part 
of an additional $1.338 billion over 4 years).  

2.3. Matters raised during the Estimates Process 
Matters raised during the committee’s examination of Queensland Health are below: 

Matter Description Pre-Hearing QoN Transcript Page No 
Rollout of real time health data, including the 
Open Hospitals website, and reported clinical 
incidents 

13 3-5, 32 

Elective surgery waitlist and specialist 
outpatient care (including funding to address 
wait times such as Surgery Connect)  

3 5-8, 11, 18, 46 

Emergency department efficiency and 
performance measures (including ‘long stays’, 
where length of stay exceeded 24 hours, stays 
over 12 hours, measures implemented to 
address ‘long stays’, Patient Off Stretcher 
Times, and wait times in emergency 
departments) 

4, 5, 11, 12, 17 9, 31-32 

Hospital Rescue plan (and former Capacity 
Expansion Plan), including new beds and 

6, 14 9-10, 15-16, 17-
18, 22, 30 
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specific plans for hospitals in Hervey Bay, 
Redcliffe, Sunshine Coast Region, Coomera 
and Bundaberg 

Health budget challenges and commitments 
funded in 2025-26 budget 

1, 2 10 

Flu vaccination program (including funding for 
free vaccinations and funding for campaign to 
encourage Queenslanders to get vaccinated) 
and hospitalisations for flu in 2025 (including 
percentage of patients who were hospitalised 
who were not vaccinated) 

- 11-12, 34-35 

Skin cancer rates, skin cancer awareness and 
sun safety social marketing campaigns  

- 12-13, 46 

Independent Review of Queensland 
Government Capacity Expansion Program 
(‘Sangster review’) and appointment of Mr 
Sangster to a role within Queensland Health  

- 13-14 

Cancelled and postponed elective surgeries - 14-15, 23 

Perinatal and infant mental health services - 16-17 

New services for Noosa and surrounding areas 
and after-hours services  

19, 20 18 

Spinal injuries rehabilitation (funding and future 
demands) 

- 19-21, 46 

Asset maintenance (including former 
Sustaining Capital Program and new Timely 
Investment Infrastructure Maintenance 
Program, and Building Rural and Remote 
Health Program) 

7 22-23 

Ambulance ramping and patient flow - 23-24 

Health workforce (including additional health 
workers and managing attrition) 

10, 16 24-25 

Satellite Health Centres (and category 1 and 2 
presentations at these centres) 

- 25-26 

Puberty Health Education Program (Ready, 
Set, Grow) 

- 26-27 

Assisted Reproductive Technology (ART), 
including IVF 

- 27-28 
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Pelvic Pain Clinic Service - 27 

Termination of pregnancy care / services - 29, 31 

Measures to respond to illicit tobacco and 
vapes (including enforcement) 

- 30 

Gender affirming health care  - 33, 36 

HHS Chief Executive Officer salary package - 33-34 

Patient Flow Rapid Response Fund 15 - 

 

Matters raised during the committee’s examination of Queensland Ambulance Services 
are below: 

Matter Description Pre-Hearing QoN Transcript Page No 
QAS strategic planning (including methods for 
modelling demand and expected growth) 

- 37-38, 45 

Workforce planning and additional paramedics 9 38-39, 40 

QAS operating budget (including changes 
across years) and funding model 

- 39 

Capital program (including fleet purchases) 8 40-41, 42-43, 45 

Regional planning for services - 41-42 

Key performance indicators (including service 
delivery, ambulance ramping and response 
time) 

18 43 

Ambulance response to calls from general 
practitioners and satellite health centres 

- 43 

Overtime hours by ambulance services / shift 
extensions 

- 44-46 
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3. Minister for the Environment and Tourism and Minister for Science and 
Innovation  

The Honourable Andrew Powell MP, Minister for the Environment and Tourism and 
Minister for Science and Innovation, is the Minister responsible for the Department of the 
Environment, Tourism, Science and Innovation (DETSI). 

3.1. Department of the Environment, Tourism, Science and Innovation 
DETSI is led by the Director-General, under the direction of the Minister, and is responsible 
for the following service areas:29  

• Environmental Programs and Regulation Services 

• Parks, Wildlife and Conservation Services  

• Heritage Protection Services 

• Tourism Industry Development 

• Science Services 

• Stimulating Queensland Innovation; and 

• Business Corporate Partnerships. 

DETSI’s strategic objectives are to:30  

• Steward: protect, conserve, and showcase Queensland’s environment for current 
and future generations 

• Partner: partner and meaningfully engage with stakeholders to drive outcomes 

• Grow: deliver sustainable growth for Queensland 

• Enable: embrace new ideas and technologies to create lasting economic and 
environmental benefits. 

DETSI funds Tourism and Events Queensland (TEQ).31 TEQ is a statutory body 
established under the Tourism and Events Queensland Act 2012 and is part of the broader 
Tourism portfolio. TEQ is subject to direction from the Minister.32 TEQ partners with 
industry and works across government to grow the visitor economy by promoting 
Queensland’s destination, experiences and events.33 

3.2. Budget Overview 
Table 4 shows the total appropriation for DETSI in 2025-26, compared with the budgeted 
and actual estimated cash appropriations for DETSI in 2024-25. DETSI oversees total 
appropriations of $1.13 billion, being approximately 1.1% of total government 
appropriations. 

 
29  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, Service Delivery Statement (SDS), Department of the Environment, 

Tourism, Science and Innovation (DETSI), pp 3-12.   
30  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 1. 
31  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 20. 
32  Tourism and Events Queensland Act 2012, section 10. 
33  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 20. 
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Table 4: Queensland Health appropriation for 2025-26 (source: Appropriate Bill 2025, sch 2, p10) 

Appropriations 
Budget 

2024-25 
$’000 

Est. Actual 
2024-25 

$’000 

Vote 
2025-26 

$’000 

Controlled Items    

 departmental services 803,765 822,194 943,618 

 equity adjustment 81,281 111,436 61,811 

Administered Items - 92,429 127,859 

Vote 885,046 1,026,059 1,133,288 

3.2.1. Budget Comparison  
Machinery-of-government changes, effective 1 and 21 November 2024, saw the following 
changes to the department:34  

• the tourism function was received from the former Department of Tourism and 
Sport; and 

• the fish habitat area policy was transferred to the Department of Primary 
Industries. 

As a result of these machinery-of-government (MOG) changes, the appropriation figures 
in the Appropriation Bill 2025 (and presented in the table above) are not directly 
comparable to appropriations in previous years. However, the Service Delivery Statement 
(SDS) presents ‘adjusted budget’ figures to reflect the MOG changes.35  An analysis of 
these figures shows a 5.5% increase (being an additional $49.5m million) in appropriation 
revenue for DETSI in 2025-26 compared with the 2024-25 adjusted budgeted amount.36 
The need for increased appropriation revenue appears to be driven by increased 
operating expenses in the following service areas in 2025-26 when compared with the 
2024-25 adjusted budget:37  

• Environment programs and regulation (an increase of $32.2 million) 

• Tourism Industry Development (an increase of $40.7 million)  

• Innovation (an increase of $43 million). 

TEQ is funded primarily through grants from DETSI. TEQ’s budgeted revenue from ‘grants 
and other contributions’ is set to decrease by $12.7 million in 2025-26 (approximately 
8.5%), compared to actual estimated expenditure in 2024-25. Reduced budgeted cash 

 
34  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 1. 
35  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 11, see note 2. 
36  From controlled appropriation revenue of $894.1 million in 2024-25 to $943.6 million budgeted for 

2025-26. See Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 11.  
37  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 11. 
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appropriations are offset by a reduction in budgeted expenses, primarily for supplies and 
services and grants and subsidies.38 

3.2.2. Budget Highlights 
The 2025-26 budget highlights for DETSI include:39 

Additional funding to support the delivery of Destination 
2045: Delivering Queensland’s Tourism Future, including 
funding for aviation attraction, event attraction and new 
product development and further supplementation for TEQ. 

Additional funding of $50 million in 2025-
26, as part of additional funding of $446 
million over 4 years. 

Funding for Resource Recovery Boost Fund to build critical 
waste infrastructure, divert waste from landfill and increase 
recycling. 

$130 million over 3 years (no additional 
funding; to be met internally by DETSI) 

Delivering new and expanded facilities for the Wildlife 
Hospital Network which provide specialist care to sick and 
injured native wildlife. 

Additional funding of $21.15 million in 
2025-26, as part of $39.6 million over 3 
years (from 2024-25) 

Enhanced management of national parks and protected 
areas through increased funding of ‘More Rangers, Better 
Neighbours’ initiative, including funding for additional 
rangers 

Additional funding of $10.006 million in 
2025-26, as part of $84.6 million over 5 
years 

‘Zero Litter to the Bay by 2030’ initiative, as fulfilment of an 
election commitment, including additional funding to 
partner with local governments to upgrade stormwater 
network infrastructure and prevent litter escaping into 
Moreton Bay by 2030 

Additional funding of $160,000 in 2025-
26, as part of $27.7 over 4 years 

3.2.3. Capital program 
In 2025-26, DETSI’s budgeted capital program, consisting of capital purchases and capital 
grants, is $279.4 million. This is a 42.8% increase on the 2024-25 adjusted budgeted total 
capital outlays.40 The significant increase is driven largely by an additional $66 million for 
capital grants which increased due to SEQ City Deal programs.41  

DETSI’s capital program includes $39.6 million for acquisition of land to expand the 
protected area estate, $18.3 million for development of the Wangetti Trail, walking and 
mountain bike trails, and eco-accommodation facilities, and over $28 million for recreation 
and visitor facility upgrades.42 

  

 
38  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 23. 
39  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 2, and Budget Measures (BP4), pp 51-53. 
40  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 12. 
41  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 12, and particularly note 2. 
42  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, SDS, DETSI, p 12. 
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Capital investment highlights in 2025-26, totalling $8.466 million, include:43  

• $6.246 million for the Wangetti Trail Project 

• $1.76 million for the Games On! Grassroots Infrastructure Program 

• $460,000 for local infrastructure improvement, including installing public mooring 
infrastructure at Mudjimba Island. 

3.3. Matters raised during the Estimates Process 
Matters raised during the committee’s examination of the Department of the Environment, 
Tourism, Science and Innovation are below: 

Matter Description Pre-Hearing 
QoN Transcript Page No 

Protected areas including national parks and 
nature refuges 

8, 11, 12, 13, 
19 

51-52, 54, 65-66 

UNESCO World Heritage Site protection and 
nominations, including the Great Barrier Reef and 
Cape York Peninsula 

- 52-54, 59-63 

Queensland Parks and Wildlife Service Land 
Management, including More Rangers, Better 
Neighbours 

7 54-55, 88 

Wildlife protection and rehabilitation, including 
funding for wildlife hospitals (including Seaworld 
Marine Hospital), conservation of threatened or 
vulnerable species (including dingos and koalas), 
and support for local conservation groups 

- 55-57, 64, 66, 75, 
76 

Waste management (including Queensland 
Waste Strategy and Zero Litter to the Bay) and 
resource recovery boost 

5, 6 56, 58, 65 

QCoast 2100 programs and grants (including 
investments to address beach erosion) 

- 63-65 

Gold Coast Sky rail project: environmental impact  - 66-67 

Chief Entrepreneur - 68 

Vegetation management including clearing and 
monitoring 

- 69, 78 

Innovation portfolio (including innovation policy 
and Advance Queensland) and workforce 
management 

15 69, 76 

 
43  Queensland Budget, 2025-26, Budget Measures (BP4), pp 110-11. 
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Management of science policy  14 70-71 

Science and innovation sector support / funding / 
grants (including research infrastructure co-
investment fund, defence industry, education, 
vaccine development, Female Founders, and 
First Nations innovators, and innovation precincts) 

10, 17 70-73, 77-79 

General policy and response regarding 
perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances 
(PFAS) 

- 74-75 

Support for First Nations tourism (including 
cultural centres and consultation process) 

- 80-82, 98 

Destination 2045 Tourism Plan (including 
ecotourism, regional tourism, adventure tourism 
and tourism levies, consultation undertaken, 
marketing and advertising costs and capitalising 
on the Olympics) 

1, 2, 20 82-83, 85, 87, 90-
94-97, 99 

Investment in Tourism (DETSI and TEQ) 3 84 

Wangetti Trail - 84-85 

Connecting Queensland Fund and the Attracting 
Aviation Investment Fund, including notified air 
quality exceedances and Flight Paths 

16 76, 86-87, 88, 92, 
98 

Reducing red tape for tourism businesses 4 89-90 

Funding for event attraction and tourist operators 18 95 

Great Barrier Reef and Outback Queensland 
education experience programs 

- 96 

Queensland Mine Rehabilitation Commissioner 9 - 

Grants administered by DETSI 17 - 
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Statement of Reservation Member for Noosa 

  



Health Environment and Innovation Committee Report No. 12,  
58th Parliament — 2025-26 Budget Estimates 

Statement of Reservation — Sandy Bolton MP Member for Noosa 

 

Whilst supporting this year’s Health Environment and Innovation Committee 
(HEIC) report, I again draw attention to the unresolved issues across the broader 
estimates and committee system and processes, and ongoing need to for an 
independent review to ensure greater efficiencies and scrutiny of governments.  

This is not a reflection on the hearings I attended or this committee, nor the 
Speaker and Deputy Speaker who chaired from my experience with respect and 
fairness, and who in addition allowed some extra time for my follow-on questions 
which was appreciated.  

However, relying on the generosity of chairs or opposition members in attendance 
does not make a good process, and is why since 2019 opposition members 
including the crossbench have sought a review. 

This led to some positive changes in 2024 to the estimates process, with more 
Questions on Notice and extended question time. This was a good start. 

As reported in the Courier-Mail on 28 July 2024 during last year’s estimates 
hearings “the LNP has pledged to overhaul the estimates process if elected in 
October, including changing committee structures to ensure all were headed by 
an independent chair.1” This was a pinnacle and much awaited moment. 

Instead, what has occurred has been minor, including that the Speaker and 
Deputy Speaker chair each committee hearing rather than the committee chairs 
themselves. This was not the independence sought and did not result in fewer 
Points of Order and ‘Points of Order on Points of Order’ which led to even less time 
for questioning.  

In addition, the improvements made in 2024 of allowing crossbench members to 
submit one Question on Notice to each Minister, and an increase in time 
allocation for the opposition questioning via a decrease in government questions, 
were reversed.  

The use of ‘Dorothy Dixers’ to repeat information already in the budget 
documents, government press releases or ministerial statements is not an 
effective use of resources.  

 
1 Courier-Mail, 28 July 2025, “Major allegations against former Parole Board president”. 



What should be a process of scrutinisation and illumination, basically remains 
unchanged from previous years of government promotion and obscuration. 
Ultimately every member including the speakers and ministers, parliamentary 
service staff members, director-generals and ministerial staffers are paid for by 
the taxes of Queenslanders. We should all be working together in and for a 
process that is efficient, effective and pushes information out in a format that is 
clear and understandable. 

Professor Peter Coaldrake said in his important 2022 report Let the Sunshine in – 
A Review of Culture and Accountability in the Queensland Public Sector: “in every 
case, whether the trivialising of parliamentary committees, lack of independence 
needed by integrity bodies or lack of clarity about decision making, this can be 
reversed by a commitment to openness, supported by accountability2.” 

To rebuild trust and transparency of our systems, governments and 
representatives, we must strive for this openness and accountability. 

At a minimum, the key improvements of the 2024 estimates hearings must be 
reinstated. 

Further, for government to commission that independent review as requested 
over the years, drawing on both public input and examples from other parliaments 
around Australia and the world, to maximise their value to the people of 
Queensland. 

Such a review should also consider the presentation of the budget in an 
accessible and comprehendible manner drawing on the examples of the Scottish 
Fiscal Commission, the Office of the Parliamentary Budget Officer in Canada, the 
Commonwealth Parliamentary Budget Office and others, so all can be easily 
interpreted by the people we represent. 

In closing I would like to acknowledge and highlight the incredible amount of work 
by all ministers, departmental staff and agencies who prepared for and attended 
the hearings, thank the Speaker and Deputy Speaker for undertaking what would 
have been an exhausting two weeks, members and committee secretariats, 
Hansard and all who partook in this year’s Budget Estimates. In addition, to all 
who answered our questions openly and with good clarity. 

 

Sandy Bolton MP 
Member for Noosa 

 
2 Coaldrake Report, https://www.coaldrakereview.qld.gov.au/, p 2. 
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of Country
We acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the 
lands, seas, skies and waterways from across 
Queensland.

We pay our respect to the Elders, past, present 
and emerging, for they hold the memories, 
traditions, the culture and hopes of Aboriginal 
peoples and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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The Queensland Labor Opposition thanks public sector employees right across Queensland for the work that 
they do each and every day on behalf of all Queenslanders. Without over 270,000 full-time equivalent public 
sector roles in Queensland undertaking that work, Queenslanders would not have access to the services and 
support that they need and deserve.   

In particular, the Queensland Labor Opposition thanks all public servants involved in the preparation of 
Budget Estimates. Preparing for a Budget Estimates process is a monumental task that can involve hundreds 
of staff to not only attend the public hearings but also prepare briefing materials and gather information.  

HEALTH AND AMBULANCE SERVICES 
The Crisafulli LNP Government’s first budget was a budget of broken promises for Queensland Health and 
the Queensland Ambulance Service.  

The Crisafulli LNP Government promised greater transparency and accountability of government. Yet, the 
2025 Budget Estimates highlighted more of the same – that when the Crisafulli LNP Government say 
something, it means nothing.  

This budget obfuscates details, allowing the Crisafulli LNP Government to wiggle out of their promise to 
deliver health infrastructure projects on time and on budget.  

It breaks a great number of other promises, including the promise to listen to the experts and deliver health 
services to Queenslanders when they need it most.  

HEALTH CAPITAL 

The Queensland Labor Opposition holds grave concerns regarding the delivery of the Queensland Health 
Capital Program.  

While the Crisafulli LNP Government has committed to greater transparency and accountability of 
government, the 2025-26 investment in Health Capital Programs stands in direct contrast to this commitment. 
Budget Paper 3 does not clearly outline funding to discrete hospital builds, including new hospital builds under 
the former Capacity Expansion Program.  

This matter was pursued during the Estimates hearing. Yet when questioned, it was revealed the Chief 
Executives of Hospital and Health Service could not provide any detail. When asked if a completion date for 
the new Coomera Hospital had been discussed with him, the Chief Executive of the Gold Coast Hospital and 
Health Service Mr Ron Calvert said: 

MR CALVERT: As I said, I think it would be best to refer that to Mr Sangster.  

MR BAILEY: You are unable to give us a completion date on the Coomera Hospital construction?  

MR CALVERT: I am here for my expertise on the Gold Coast Hospital and Health Service. I would 
not want to mislead the committee with my assumptions. 

MR BAILEY: I appreciate your answer, but obviously you would plan for the future. There is no 
completion date that you are aware of for the Coomera Hospital construction?  

MR CALVERT: I do not want to offer a date in case I get it wrong. 1 

Likewise, when asked about the new Bundaberg Hospital, the Chief Executive of the Wide Bay Hospital and 
Health Service said: 

 
1 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 22 

https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf
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MS CARROLL: The new Bundaberg Hospital is certainly under the auspice of Sam Sangster, who is 
the director of the program. We are certainly looking at the options of being on a single site. You are 
best to ask him the question on dates et cetera.  

MR BAILEY: To this point there is no completion date being discussed in terms of when the 
Bundaberg Hospital may open?  

MS CARROLL: We are doing further planning for the single-site option and, once again, I would 
refer to Sam Sangster, who is managing the project, for further details.2 

It is concerning to say the least that the people put in charge to plan for hospital and health service delivery in 
some of our highest growth regions did not have an answer on when new hospitals would come online. How 
are they expected to plan for the workforces of the future?  

For this reason, the Queensland Labor Opposition holds significant concerns regarding the funding pipeline, 
including how much funding has been deferred to across the forwards and beyond. There continues to be 
significant pressure on Queensland Health, which requires increased investment in both workforce and hospital 
beds. Unfortunately, this budget provides no certainty on which projects will be delivered, nor if they will 
delivered in line with the publicly committed scope.  

In answering questions on modelling for increasing capacity for a Queensland spinal injuries unit, the Director 
General said: 

DR ROSENGREN: … “I am aware that there is a need for substantial investment in ensuring that 
we have adequate spinal services for the community,”3  

And further to this point stated, “yes, there is a deficiency of beds in our spinal services.”4 

Despite this admission from the Director-General, the Crisafulli LNP Government has failed to fund new beds 
or upgraded infrastructure to support Queensland’s Spinal Injuries Rehabilitation Service.  

This government promised to deliver health services when Queenslanders need it most, yet in the Estimates 
hearing it was exposed there is an immediate 30 bed shortage for Queensland’s Spinal Injury Rehabilitation 
Service.  

The Spinal Unit joins a list of projects that there is a demonstrated need for, as voiced by stakeholders, the 
broader community and made apparent by hospital performance data.  

Due to time constraints, the Queensland Labor Opposition was unable to interrogate further investment or 
funding shortfalls to deliver health capital projects to meet demand. We hold genuine concerns that the 
government is failing to listen to the experts, and to current modelling on delivering good public health services 
for Queenslanders – as was promised.  

HEALTH PROMOTION 

It was also made clear through the estimates hearing where the government’s priorities sit when it comes to 
Queenslanders’ Health – that is, self-promotion over health promotion.  

The Crisafulli LNP Government has demonstrated their obsession with self-promotion, and the cost this 
presents to taxpayers. When asked, the Director-General of the Department of Premier and Cabinet said:  

 
2 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 22 
3 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 21 
4 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 22  

https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf
https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf
https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf
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Mr MILES: Can you outline what government advertising campaigns there have been to promote flu 
vaccination and how that compares to the funding provided to the advertising for the Hospital Rescue 
Plan campaign?  

Mr Walker: I do not have that material to hand. I can certainly talk about the broader campaigns.  

Mr MILES: It is just those two I am interested in.  

Mr Walker: Remind me again. It was the—  

Mr MILES: Flu vaccination and the Hospital Rescue Plan. 

Mr Walker: I might need to grab some additional information on the flu vaccinations. Perhaps I will 
speak first to the Hospital Rescue Plan… The plan was released to the marketplace more broadly on 
23 April 2025 and supported by paid social media and a search campaign directing people to visit the 
campaign website. A wider paid media campaign launched on 6 May 2025 and ran until 28 June 2025.  

Mr MILES: Is there a dollar amount for that campaign?  

Mr Walker: The campaign cost $1.67 million excluding GST.5 

In comparison, during the health estimates hearing the Director-General revealed: 

Dr Rosengren: “I can confirm that $675,000 has been spent on the 2025 campaign for influenza in 
Queensland.”6 

In what experts warned to be one of the worst influenza seasons Queensland has ever experienced, the 
Crisafulli LNP Government decided to spend almost three times on self-promotion, as for health promotion of 
free flu vaccines for Queenslanders.  

The Crisafulli LNP Government further refused to answer questions on the funding allocated in this budget to 
sun safety social marketing campaigns, which whistle-blowers told the Queensland Labor Opposition have 
been cut. In 2022, $8.4 million was invested in skin cancer prevention and early detection over four years, 
until June 2026. 7  

When asked about how much funding remained committed over the next 12 months, the Crisafulli LNP 
Government could not provide a specific answer to the question, responding at the end of the hearing in general 
terms about a range of social media campaigns. That is despite the evidence presented at the hearing 
demonstrating that Queenslanders continue to be diagnosed with skin cancer at alarming rates.  

The Queensland Labor Opposition is concerned that the lack of funding to health promotion campaigns will 
result in worse health outcomes for Queenslanders. The Crisafulli LNP Government’s obsession with self-
promotion over health promotion are already impacting the State’s health system and Queenslander’s health.  

It has been widely reported in the media of rescheduled elective surgeries and hospitals at Tier 3 capacity or 
on bypass due to the surge in influenza cases in Queensland.  

Of the increased number of influenza hospitalisations this year, it was revealed in the hearing 86% of people 
are unvaccinated. The Crisafulli LNP Government has a responsibility to appropriately plan for and manage 
Queensland’s influenza season to ensure that Queenslander’s healthcare is not impacted by the increased 
demand on the health system during winter months.  

 
5 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_07_29_EstimatesGEC.pdf pages 25 and 26 
6 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 12 
7 https://www.choreport.health.qld.gov.au/our-lifestyle/spotlight#section__sun-safety 

https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_07_29_EstimatesGEC.pdf
https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf
https://www.choreport.health.qld.gov.au/our-lifestyle/spotlight#section__sun-safety
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This Crisafulli LNP Government promised health services when Queenslanders need them, yet they failed to 
appropriately plan for the Queensland flu season and prevent surgery rescheduling and hospital bypass. This 
was best summarised by the Leader of the Opposition, The Honourable Steven Miles MP who asked: 

Mr MILES: Again, noting your very extensive experience, Director-General, of the tier 3 escalations 
experienced at Queensland’s hospitals this year, how many were you advised by the executives of 
those HHSs were caused by a lack of public awareness of the Queensland Health capital program?8 

WOMEN AND GIRLS HEALTH 

Repeatedly the Crisafulli LNP Government promised that all commitments in the Women’s and Girls Health 
Strategy would be honoured. Yet during the estimates hearing it was exposed that publicly funded IVF for 
women with cancer and other complex medical conditions had not commenced as planned by 1 July 2025.  

The Director-General stated: 

Dr Rosengren: The answer is that we do not have a publicly funded IVF service in Queensland at this 
point in time. 9 

The Deputy Director-General of Clinical Excellence Queensland highlighted just how important continuing 
with the initiatives of the Women’s and Girls Health Strategy is. They said: 

Dr Brown: To start, I would like to thank the over 12,000 women and girls across the state who were 
part of developing this strategy and whom we were able to hear from and our clinicians and numerous 
stakeholders across the state who inputted into this strategy. 10 

Despite saying one thing, it is understood that the Crisafulli LNP Government have broken their promise to 
deliver the Women’s and Girls Health Strategy in its entirety, as previously planned.  

The Queensland Labor Opposition also revealed that there were 5,820 patients waiting longer for their elective 
surgery than clinically recommended. That was an increase of 2,521 compared to 12 months prior.  

It was also revealed that there were 315,409 patients waiting for specialist outpatient care – 123,724 of those 
patients were waiting longer than clinically recommended. That represents an increase of 28,807 patients than 
12 months prior, with 12,943 more waiting longer than clinically recommended. It is noted after the Director-
General then provided a higher number of 29,736 more patients on the specialist outpatient waiting list 
compared to the same time last year.  

So not only has the waitlist for elective surgery increased, but the waitlist for the waitlist has skyrocketed as 
more patients struggle to see their specialist. The Crisafulli LNP Government have broken their promise to 
listen to the experts and they have broken their promise to deliver health services when Queenslanders need 
them. Due to the short time available, the Queensland Labor Opposition was unable to probe further into the 
blowout in the Specialist Outpatient Waiting list under the Crisafulli LNP Government, regarding which the 
Queensland Labor Opposition holds deep reservations. 

Other issues that were canvassed during the estimates hearing include the health directive indefinitely banning 
stage 1 and stage 2 hormone therapies for young people, which was revealed to be a decision of Cabinet rather 
than based on the advice of health experts. 

Further issues that were not able to be canvassed include the government’s cutting of harm prevention 
programs, including pill testing, the failure to support frontline doctors and nurses through the scrapping of 

 
8 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 14 
9 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 27 
10 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 27 
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the Workforce Attraction Incentive Scheme, and the government, to date, failing to deliver on their promise of 
nation leading pay and conditions for Queensland nurses.  

QUEENSLAND AMBULANCE SERVICE 

The Queensland Labor Opposition holds reservations that the 2025-26 Budget does not meet the increasing 
demand on the Queensland Ambulance Service.  

In the estimates hearing, the Queensland Ambulance Service Commissioner, Commissioner Emery, said with 
respect to growth in demand on Queensland Ambulance Service, “This year that figure is about six per cent.”11 

The Queensland Ambulance Service Commissioner outlined that less additional Queensland Ambulance staff 
and frontline paramedics had been funded in this budget than previous years. Given the continuing demands 
that are placed on the Queensland Ambulance Service, the Queensland Labor Opposition would have 
considered it appropriate the Crisafulli LNP Government would commit to hiring the same if not, more 
additional Queensland Ambulance Service staff than previous years.  

HEALTH AND AMBULANCE SERVICES – CONCLUSION   

The Queensland Labor Opposition holds reservations in relation to the budgeted expenditure for the Health 
and Queensland Ambulance Portfolio Areas. Most notably, its lack of accountability and transparency in 
respect of Health Capital projects. Without the 2,200 hospital beds that were planned to be delivered by 2028, 
Queensland’s hospitals will fail to keep pace with growth – that means vulnerable and sick Queenslanders in 
need of emergent care will miss out.  

Once again, the Crisafulli LNP Government has demonstrated the 2025-26 Budget is a budget of broken 
promises. This budget breaks the Premier’s promise to deliver health capital projects on time and on budget, 
to respect taxpayers’ money with self-promotion over health promotion, to deliver health services when 
Queenslanders need them, to be open and transparent, and on their promise to our hardworking frontline heath 
workforce.  

All Queenslanders, patients, families and health workers, deserve better.  

ENVIRONMENT, SCIENCE AND INNOVATION 
The role of the Minister for Environment in Queensland at its very core is to protect the environment and 
promote conservation.  

To ensure the sustainable use of resources and the protection of biodiversity.  

To be nature’s voice in Cabinet, when industry has many. 

To seek that difficult balance. 

None of these qualities were present in the consideration of the 2025-2026 Budget Estimates for Environment, 
Science and Innovation. 

CLIMATE CHANGE 

The single biggest risk to the Great Barrier Reef, our natural environment and the flora and fauna that call it 
home is climate change.  

While the Administrative Orders identified Climate Science as being within the Minister’s portfolio and the 
Minister’s Charter Letter includes a commitment to ‘work collaboratively with the Treasurer, Minister for 
Energy and Home Ownership to progress Queensland toward net zero and reduce our emissions in a 

 
11 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 38 
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sustainable and practical manner’, the Minister’s LNP Government colleagues on the Committee ran 
continuous interference in the form of frivolous points of order to avoid talking about the importance of 
emissions reduction to protecting our environment throughout the Estimates hearing.  

The Shadow Environment Minister, asked the following line of questioning: 

Ms LINARD: Minister, given climate change is the greatest single risk to the health of the Great 
Barrier Reef, do you remain committed to achieving net zero by 2050?   
Dr ROWAN: Point of order, Mr Deputy Speaker: it relates to a policy within a portfolio area and 
that relates to questions which need to be put to the energy minister, who earlier in the week was 
here at the estimates. That would have been an appropriate time to ask that question.   
Ms LINARD: Mr Deputy Speaker, if I may be heard?  
Mr POWELL: Just to clarify, the climate change component of the department has transferred to 
the Treasurer’s portfolio, to back up what the member for Moggill said.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: You are saying that it is not in your portfolio?   
Mr POWELL: Neither the office of climate change nor the decisions around energy mix and 
deliverables. They sit within the Treasurer’s portfolio.   
Ms LINARD: The administrative arrangements indicate climate science remains with the minister 
and his charter letter says—  

Work collaboratively with the Treasurer, Minister for Energy and Home Ownership to progress 
Queensland toward net zero and reduce our emissions in a sustainable and practical manner.   
I would think the environment minister can answer questions in respect of emissions reduction.   
Dr ROWAN: I raise a further point of order, Mr Deputy Speaker. If the member for Nudgee wishes to 
rephrase the question or move to an alternative question, that would be appropriate. However, the 
question as asked relates to the portfolio of the Minister for Energy, the Treasurer’s portfolio. 12 

The Member for Greenslopes asked the following line of questioning: 

Mr J KELLY: Minister, last week the media reported that there would be a motion put to the LNP 
convention next month calling for the federal coalition to reject net zero. I ask: does your 
government remain committed to achieving net zero by 2050? 

Mr MOLHOEK: Point of order, Mr Deputy Speaker: relevance.  

Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Thank you for that point of order. I think, member for Greenslopes, the 
question that you have asked relates to the party. The minister has already answered the question of 
the member for Nudgee in relation to net zero and his charter letter. I would ask you to move on to 
another question, please. The LNP convention is not within the minister’s portfolio responsibilities. 
13 

And again: 

Mr J KELLY: Thank you, Mr Deputy Speaker. Director-General, prior to the election the LNP 
supported Queensland’s emissions reduction targets. Now in government the LNP are reviewing the 
Clean Economy Jobs Act, have extended the life of publicly owned coal-fired power stations, are 
expanding gas exploration and have cancelled renewable energy projects. What advice—  

 
12 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 61 
13 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 61 
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Mr LEE: Mr Deputy Speaker, I raise a point of order.  
Mr MOLHOEK: Mr Deputy Speaker, I raise a point of order.  
Mr J KELLY: I have not even asked my question, so I am not quite sure how you take points of order.  
Mr MOLHOEK: You are doing a lot of preamble.  
Mr LEE: It is a long preamble.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Order, members to my right. I will hear the question and if there are points 
of order that arise from it we can hear them then.  
Committee members interjected.  
Mr LEE: Waffle.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Order, members!  
Mr J KELLY: I take personal offence at that statement and I would ask that it be withdrawn.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Which one?  
Mr J KELLY: I will not restate it.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Sorry, from which member?  
Mr J KELLY: I believe it was the member for Hervey Bay.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Member for Hervey Bay, would you withdraw that statement, please?  
Mr LEE: I withdraw.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Thank you, member for Hervey Bay. Member for Greenslopes, you can ask 
your question.  
Mr J KELLY: Director-General, what advice have you provided to the minister with respect to the 
risk that the reef may be listed as ‘in danger’ due to the government’s mixed messages and 
uncertainty regarding emissions reduction?  
Dr ROWAN: Mr Deputy Speaker, point of order: there are imputations and inferences contained 
within that question. It is disorderly and I would ask you to rule it out of order.  
Mr DEPUTY SPEAKER: Member for Greenslopes, there are a number of points here. I am advised 
that your question contains arguments and also the preamble relates to acts and measures that are 
not within the minister’s portfolio responsibilities.14  

Queenslanders have a right to feel mislead.  
The Crisafulli LNP government said one thing to Queenslanders in respect of their commitment to emissions 
reduction before the election and are doing the complete opposite now they are in government. 

PROTECTED AREAS 

Queensland is the most biodiverse state in Australia, and one of the most biodiverse regions in the world. It 
must be protected as a legacy for every Queenslander.  

The Crisafulli LNP Government claimed they would expand protected areas by almost 2 million hectares by 
2028. That equates to roughly 480,000 hectares per year. Yet they allocated no new or additional funds in the 
2025-26 budget and in the year to date have added almost no new acquisitions, instead claiming 18 new nature 
refuges and land transfers initiated under former Labor governments as their own.  

 
14 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 61 and 62 
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When in government, Labor established an historic $262.5 million protected area expansion fund. The land 
acquisitions achieved under this fund has left a legacy for our environment and the Queensland community in 
perpetuity.  

The $39.6 million committed in the 2025-26 budget for high-priority land acquisitions is the final uncommitted 
portion of this historic fund, with the Crisafulli LNP Government allocating no new or additional funds. The 
real test for the Crisafulli LNP Government now is to put their money where their mouth is and replace hubris 
with real action. 

The Shadow Minister for the Environment, the Member for Nudgee asked the Director-General:  

Ms LINARD: Director-General, am I correct to take from your answer that there was actually no 
new or additional funding by the Crisafulli government in this budget? That was a carryover from the 
former Labor government’s budget for expansion of public protected area?  

Ms O’Callaghan: This government signed off on the budget of $39.6 million.  

Ms LINARD: So yes or no? There was no new and additional funding?  

Ms O’Callaghan: The budget was drawn down from the $250 million. 15 

GREATER GLIDER FOREST PARK 

It was also deeply concerning to discover that the Crisafulli LNP Government will not honour a commitment 
to establish a 54,000-hectare Greater Glider Forest Park to expand and link existing but fragmented protected 
areas, ranging from near Conondale National Park near Maleny northward to Cordalba National Park near 
Childers, to conserve core greater glider habitat. Glider habitat continues to be logged and cleared.  

This new park would have provided vital habitat to save this precious Queensland animal from extinction.  

The Minister had no answer as to why conservation groups have been denied a voice in this decision, claiming 
it’s a matter for the Minister for Primary Industries. It is highly doubtful that Greater Gliders will be a high 
priority for the Crisafulli LNP Government. 

The Shadow Minister for the Environment, the Member for Nudgee asked:  

Ms LINARD: Am I to take it, Director-General, that this area [Greater Glider Forest Park] will 
continue to be logged and is now not going to be protected for greater gliders?  

Ms O’Callaghan: Currently we are working through a process, and the Queensland Future Timber 
Plan will consider the appropriate tenure for these forests. 16 

CAPE YORK PENINSUAL WORLD HERITAGE LISTING 

The estimates process also exposed the hypocrisy of the Crisafulli LNP Government on protecting the Cape 
York Peninsula. Cape York is globally recognised as an area of immense environmental significance due to 
its exceptional biodiversity, intact ecosystems and rich cultural heritage. The Crisafulli LNP Government’s 
decision to review the tentative World Heritage listing of the cultural landscapes of Cape York is clearly 
ideologically driven.  

Ten traditional owner groups gave consent to have their Cultural Landscapes included in the Cape York 
Peninsula World Heritage Tentative Listing. Their voices and their wishes for their lands should be respected. 

 
15 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 52 
16 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 52 
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$2.4 million was quarantined by the former Miles Labor government for Heritage Assessment Grants and 
funding to Traditional Owner groups to support research and governance activities on the Cape York World 
Heritage listing documents. Broader consultation on the next step of the Cape York World Heritage nomination 
was due to commence in late 2024.  

Yet at estimates we heard from the Director-General that the process is under review and to “ensure 
independence in this consultation, the department has appointed a senior leader from the Queensland Parks 
and Wildlife Service to conduct a review”.17 Is the Crisafulli LNP Government inferring that the former 
consultation, also conducted by senior leaders within the department, wasn’t independent? This is an 
extraordinary claim to hear a Director-General make about officers in their own department.  

In 2012 when the LNP was last in government and withdrew support for a World Heritage listed Cape York, 
the Minister stated that the Cape was “over consulted” and that more consultation would be a “waste of 
money”.  

Now in 2025 the Crisafulli LNP Government is reviewing the tentative World Heritage listing on the basis that 
the consultation was not broad enough, and alleging concerns that Traditional Owners may not have 
understood what they were agreeing to.  

Minister Andrew Powell said:  

Mr POWELL: …a number of groups have given consent. What I would question is whether that was 
freely given or whether it was due to a rushed process. …18 

This is a risible claim to anyone who has actually engaged with the highly informed Traditional Owner groups 
in Cape York. 

Surely a Minister would travel to the Cape to meet with the Traditional Owners who supported the tentative 
listing before announcing a review of the process? At the very least it would be reasonable for the Minister to 
make the effort to meet with or contact any of the ten traditional owner groups, but it was made clear at the 
estimates hearing that even this courtesy was not extended by the Minister and the LNP Crisafulli government.  

Queenslanders can be rightfully proud that our state is home to not one but two of the world’s oldest continuing 
cultures and the iconic landscapes that hold their stories. Sadly, it is not evident that the LNP Crisafulli 
Government will listen to our First Peoples or protect their country into the future. 

SCIENCE AND INNOVATION 

With investment in both foundational and applied science, science has the potential to solve our generation’s 
greatest challenges. It has the potential to launch the state on to a new trajectory to become a global science 
powerhouse, as the former Beattie Labor government did when investing in the Smart State Strategy.  

That’s why in 2024 the former Miles Labor Government launched the Future Queensland Science Strategy 
2024-2029, the first-ever whole-of-government science strategy to ensure Queensland capitalises on dynamic 
fields such as renewable energy, climate change mitigation and quantum and advanced technologies. Science 
Advisory Council Queensland was also established to guide science priorities and advise on national and 
international opportunities for research.  

In contrast, the LNP did not release a science policy or platform prior to the 2024 election and has announced 
no new or additional funding for this vital service area within the Department in the 2025-26 budget. 

 
17 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 52 
18 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 54  
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This is unfortunately also true of the innovation portfolio. The LNP did not release an innovation policy or 
platform prior to the election and has announced no new or additional funding for innovation in the 2025-26 
financial year.  

In this absence of ideas, the Queensland Labor Opposition is glad that the Crisafulli LNP Government 
continues to implement the former Labor government’s vision for science and innovation in our great state. 

ENVIRONMENT, SCIENCE AND INNOVATION – CONCLUSION  

At the hearing, the Crisafulli LNP Government made big claims about paving a brighter future for our state 
and, predictably, sought to criticise the Queensland Labor Opposition’s record. 

Yet it appears every dollar allocated in the 2025-26 budget for protected area expansion was a carry-over from 
the Miles Labor government’s previous budget.  

It appears every dollar allocated in the 2025-26 Science budget was a carry-over from the Miles Labor 
government’s previous budget. 

It appears every dollar allocated in the 2025-26 Innovation budget was a carry-over from the Miles Labor 
government’s previous budget.  

And that every dollar of the $130 million Resource Recovery Boost Fund in the 2025-26 budget was 
repurposed funds from the Miles Labor government’s previous budget. 

The Crisafulli LNP Government committed no new or additional funds to these areas. Just endless hubris in 
answers to Questions on Notice and at the Estimates hearing, where they took credit for Labor’s homework, 
while continuing to depend on our commitments when in government. 

Queenslanders deserve better and our environment deserves better. 

TOURISM 
FIRST NATIONS TOURISM 

The Crisafulli LNP Government’s decision to cancel two First Nations Cultural Centres in Brisbane and 
Cairns builds deep uncertainty in the strength of our tourism sector, in particular cultural tourism, and brings 
into question the government’s commitment to building these experiences.  

First Nations Cultural Centres would be a vital connection between the learning and understanding of 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander culture.  

It would be a deeply unique experience for not just the many international visitors seeking to learn about the 
oldest continuing living culture in the world, but for many Australians seeking to better understand their 
neighbours, friends, and the land on which they live.  

As the Chair of the First Nations Tourism Council told the Australian newspaper prior to the government 
announcing they were scrapping the centres: 

“I think it would be a wonderful gesture from the government that’s based on good economic 
outcomes for, not only First Nations people but the tourism sector in general.” 

In that same article, Professor of Practice at the Griffith Institute for Tourism Daniel Gschwind said: 

“I think there is a genuine interest from visitors to learn more about our history and our cultural 
background as a nation.” 
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As was revealed during the estimates hearing, the Department of Education and Arts Queensland, and the 
relevant Minister, failed to consult with the Department of the Environment, Tourism, Science and 
Innovation. The Minister also failed to reveal whether he was consulted by the relevant Minister before 
Cabinet ultimately made the decision to cancel the First Nations Cultural Centres.  

During the estimates hearing, the Minister said: 

Mr POWELL: One of the things I have learned and heard loud and clear is that our tourists these 
days are very different. They are looking for experiences and they want to get in touch with First 
Nations history, culture and immersive experiences.19 

Given the Crisafulli LNP Government’s decision to cancel the Cultural Centres, it is clear that this 
government is not listening to what Queenslanders want. 

It is regrettable that the Minister has failed to meet with representatives of Queensland’s Indigenous tourism 
industry. Indigenous tourism is one of our state’s most distinctive and high-value offerings, yet its voices 
have been sidelined from critical conversations about funding and strategy. Without that, opportunities for 
collaboration, growth, and cultural respect are being missed. 

This decision falls into line with a long list of actions that are odds with the LNP government’s commitments 
to treating Queenslanders with respect, and points to a pattern of dismissive behaviour towards First Nations 
people and their contribution to our state.  

This bad decision represents a backwards step in our partnership with First Nations Queenslanders, but it 
also fails to take into account the economic benefits, including for the jobs that would have been generated as 
a result.  

AVIATION FUNDING 

The revelation that $55 million of the $130 million Connecting Queensland Fund is carried over from the 
previous Attraction Aviation Investment Fund, with less than $10 million actually available and $45 million 
already contractually committed, is deeply disappointing.  

More than a third of the fund is already unavailable, falling short of industry expectations for genuine new 
support. The sector needs transparency and certainty, not recycled figures presented as fresh investment. 

TOURISM LEVY 

The Crisafulli LNP Government has created confusion regarding their position on the implementation of a 
tourism levy, or “bed tax.” As was canvassed during the estimates hearing, the Director-General, in a 
previous capacity was a proponent for the introduction of a bed tax during her previous roles in the industry. 

While the Queensland Labor Opposition acknowledges that the Crisafulli LNP Government confirmed they 
are not currently doing any work on the implementation, the Minister earlier this year in a statement to the 
Gold Coast Bulletin said: 

 
19 https://documents.parliament.qld.gov.au/events/han/2025/2025_08_01_EstimatesHEC.pdf page 96 
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“As part of our community consultation, a number of councils have sought the ability to apply their 
own levy. These requests are being considered through the finalisation of the Crisafulli 
Government’s 20 Year Tourism Plan.”20 

In this statement, the Minister clearly acknowledges that they consulted with local councils on local-level 
implementation.  

DESTINATION 2045 

Destination 2045 is the Crisafulli LNP Government’s signature tourism policy, with extensive consultation 
for its’ formulation. However, the document fails to outline or deliver any real or tangible outcomes for 
regional tourism operators.  

This 20-year plan is 64 pages long – if you remove the glossy pictures, it is half that size – but it needs more 
focus on directly supplementing and supporting regional tourism operators.  

Some stakeholders have also raised concerns with the Queensland Labor Opposition regarding the Crisafulli 
LNP Government’s decision to announce a dedicated $100 million fund for event attraction. It is argued by 
some that this may indicate to international event managers, promoters and organisers that Queensland has 
the ability to pay more for their events and may lead to an attempt at price gouging for said events.  

The Crisafulli LNP Government must ensure all precautionary measures are taken to ensure the Queensland 
taxpayers are not taken for a ride by money-hungry international companies seeking to take advantage. 
During the estimates hearing, the Director-General was also unable to outline how exactly this fund would be 
used, or how it would work to attract additional events. 

In addition to this, while the Queensland Labor Opposition welcomes a focus on ecotourism, it is of vital 
importance these projects stack up and do not have a negative impact on the natural amenities that make 
them so unique to our state. The Queensland Labor Opposition also notes the Crisafulli LNP Government’s 
tourism plans outlines specific projects that are key to its’ success, that are yet to even receive federal 
environmental approval, including the Whitsunday Skyway.  

The Queensland Labor Opposition reserves it right to articulate further reservations during the debate.  

ESTIMATES PROCESS 
The Budget Estimates process is a cornerstone of our democracy in Queensland. For years it has been an 
opportunity for elected Members of Parliament, in particular non-government Members of Parliament to ask 
questions of Ministers and senior public servants to hold the elected government to account.  

During the 2024 estimates process, the former Labor Government under the direction of then Labor Premier 
Steven Miles insisted that additional transparency measures were put in place to ensure that non-government 
Members of Parliament had ample opportunity to hold the elected government to account. These included:  

• Providing crossbench Members of Parliament the ability to ask a pre-hearing Question on Notice for 
any Minister, regardless of if they were a member of the portfolio committee.  
 

 
20 https://www.goldcoastbulletin.com.au/news/queensland/mayor-tom-tate-plans-to-introduce-bed-tax-for-gold-coast-tourists/news-
story/2bd4c5e8dc34766d60069bf5dca08b1b 
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• Strictly allocating government and non-government Members of Parliament time in respect of 
questions. That being that government Members of Parliament questions should not exceed 30% of 
the total allocated time and the remaining time, 70% for non-government Members of Parliament.  
 

• Of the time allocated for non-government Members of Parliament it should be proportioned between 
Opposition and crossbench Members of Parliament, based on the proportion of the makeup at the 
time.  
 

• Only one opening statement per Minister for their entire portfolio of no longer than five minutes, 
with the Premier allocated no longer than 10 minutes.  

These transparency enhancements to the Budget Estimates process, introduced by the former Labor 
Government, were discarded by Premier David Crisafulli and the LNP Government. 

This is despite in 2020 the Courier Mail revealing the then LNP Leader of the Opposition’s views on the 
Estimates process, reporting:  

• He [David Crisafulli] said that if the government did not accept “the need to make changes”, he 
would introduce them as Premier from the first hearings of the next term in 2024 – if the LNP wins 
power at the 2024 election.  

The changes that were being referred to included: 

• increasing the time available to examine the expenditure to ensure adequate questioning can occur; 
• an Opposition or cross bench member to chair the committees to help ensure a fairer go; 
• limiting the opportunity for ‘Dorothy Dixer’ questions from Government members which exist 

simply to allow ministers to wind down the clock.  

While on paper there was more time overall for the hearings, the way in which Government Members 
conducted themselves with points of order to chew up time, and the removal of the 70% vs 30% time split, 
resulted in less time for the Opposition and Crossbench to ask questions to hold the government to account.  

These actions were the very things that then LNP Leader of the Opposition David Crisafulli criticised. In the 
article referenced, he said:  

“We’ve also seen ministers answer questions directed to independent public servants and 
Government members interrupting with tedious points of order to use up Opposition members’ 
time.”  

It is the Queensland Labor Opposition’s view that it is clear that the promises made by the then LNP in 
Opposition have been broken.  

This Budget Estimates there was nothing revolutionary about the way the hearings were conducted - 
‘dorothy dixers’ still occurred and frivolous points of order were constantly taken. 

Further information and analysis about the 2025 Budget Estimates can be found in the Statement of 
Reservation attached to the report on the Appropriation (Parliament) Bill 2025.  
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CONCLUSION 

The 2025 Budget Estimates process was an opportunity for the Crisafulli LNP Government to deliver on its 
promises – promises to reform, to do better, for a fresh start. Instead, the bar was set so low it was on the 
floor.  

Instead of delivering for Queensland, the Crisafulli LNP Government is delivering for itself. When it comes 
to accountability, this process laid bare the truth of a government that has failed to live up to its own words. 
What resounds is that the Crisafulli LNP Government continues to choose secrecy over transparency and 
political games over genuine accountability.  

The Crisafulli LNP Government’s obsession with self-interest over public interest was glaring. The people of 
modern Queensland expect a government that acts for them, not for themselves.  

They want a government that embraces the values of openness, fairness and integrity – after all, that’s what 
they were sold at the 2024 Election.  

Instead of being an opportunity for genuine interrogation of the 2025 Budget, the Estimates process was 
muddled to avoid scrutiny. By placing political convenience above the democratic process that is Budget 
Estimates, the Crisafulli LNP Government outed itself as out of step with the priorities of Queenslanders.  

This is not the “fresh start” that was promised, it is a step back. 

Queenslanders deserve better. 

   

 

JOE KELLY MP 
MEMBER FOR GREENSLOPES 
DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON OF THE COMMITTEE  
SHADOW ASSISTANT MINISTER FOR HEALTH  

 

 

DR BARBARA O’SHEA 
MEMBER FOR SOUTH BRISBANE  

SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF THE QUEENSLAND LABOR OPPOSITION 
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APPENDIX – MEDIA ARTICLES  

 

 

  

Sl.67m spruiking rescue plan whiile ill patients swamp state's wards 

LNP'S HOSPITAL 
PROMO DWARFS 
FLU VAX SPEND 

Hay,l111Johmon 

ThrMIU'nn:.is m11chl.1xpg.Jie"r 
1;-mhi Wllli ~prnl 2ffi'f'rtl!'i in@ tt-.r 
LNP,eo,,,nvn.,,1,J'O[ i<DIIY 
cl~ Hol1Kial 1!.t!!CllePlar, 
tlDn .... iJ !G :spent moo..-..gins 
= I~ ,o e~t the fi ll r.n:ri-

1111: stll~ il0\'t.'t'llrn4:"nt has 
_,t $l6101 e,:,,uikill8 ,i. 
HtJe!fJibtl~ llllan -wfiii.::h 
h•• h<tn 1<1X'altlll)• u to 
attick ~De ronner Libor i-!O\'-­
e:rn~t - bul jUS1 Sb15.00U 
alhftlism~thrfn!'J!!'[lu 't'alll­
□.rtinn,pro.grnm 

1t n-dciprtc97irJl\l('lJ~-ro­
l.!l,..Jd,&ill>a,olJ~•l1 l3 
c11R tb;m al tJie s1t11e period 
hbo1 Jcar - ;an,cl 86 per a.ml of 
tht- lJm p;ilirnh hn~it>1f.. 
lQl!dv.1lthtlli:iOubelr11ZUI1YBC­
cloated. 

The S(J\'Criilf1.t!t'l l"i HOSpilill 
Rl•~1u !=tin h:1_,; 1:N..'Cn 
,i;lo,boo "" bUl>OOrd and 
lfl~ a~~b.i11:; a~ Ult.' 
:.t;it,eo .and ~·a'l c::rotl itL-<l bf 
l le.a ll'h Mini,ter iim Nkhcill~ 
as"' Y\rlQ. hO:!illtill 11r-0J,:c1-1; 
Latlor left'lflllbooll l)tllse". 

lflCOi'lli:iari:50ttadi.'el'lbi~ 
ll~l,'DY~ llllR°lll ':sS25rnr~ 
fl u n..-ciruti:an. pnw-:im has 
il«'fl S(Slrl'(' 

·Nt1chenlthClllll)ilRn, 
~pedall:r U1o.,e JJI0.!1Milir.g 
va ·nat'oos. - .a~ cir~ to 
reilua'fl~llffl.'!OODUr hospi-, 

t;i ls1111J.C)~'i,'Mflrliotdil(ld:~" 

Att,ir"ill,in McJ.Kal Ab50<t­
atiUll OU(<(fl!>lat)d Pi"eiiJret 
Or Nid:Yim~ai:1. 

6 Thl!rr iii n,n dnubt 'M,'t"NC 

tXpc'l'IC'l"lciJII all ahancly 
bo~y Ou si.."Bson, with hU!I c'I' 
t'lllt11ber.i.of"r,eopJe lh!it'lG;hJ-
111inC'dto ht.is1Kla l. " 

Thi1. y-e;1r 43,975 pcmple 
hsn~ ,:ont,nu:t i:-dthr il1,J«irn­
J)INd I<> th• annual rn,on of 
2~3 bet1''K't'l 2020 ai1L1 
W 2>4. 

·olll' member, .;ue rq;icirt-

in::, wtxl)'ing lrenLI~ of 
Qut't'll~aler.,;eitbl!rft!t! lint,: 
(;,fi.sued hy,·.MTin,1! Nln mt';.1.• 
Silll'lfi: ,or oot rigfll n,:Je<11ny 
lbe d1l cy ofv-1((\r.-s.' Ur 
Yim~. 

"Tltilis~pl)·C'lX11.1'1'11i11i!, 
-V:it:cili.itinm ~ u r~ a. 

f~i\""l"Arwl lh rmks1o4hr ,i;tQlr 
~l{'rnmeor..l~e.· 

\trNid'lul5"'-0tli~ib!cli lK'll 
lo mmm,mt oo 1he disp:1rity 
bdwren illn'ffliring the l- lru• 
flj~[<~~:l n\l fl l,l j A~ 

1)1<>\lf\llll, 
lt1sl-BM..11llt'.f~t,-:1e§Uuni 

ID Pn!mi~r D-.1,i.f.l (.fmfu11i'J 
n ml'.f'. 

A S['Q~l~woot:w for fr 
Crlsalull ren,,,.-,:1 to •BY 
r,.fwllletllM- rtelllh?t haddOM 
t:'nfll.4!lllu, e1x:'Our'-'3t('l!Ollle 
lo gel l"ilCCinated 01 ifipcnd 
mg t., n:l' times thr nmoonli 
ildl'frt1;il1111i hC1SpltalbutldlQl!l 
lban the hu ~.Hut'l "'-'a5 Lt1e 
ri;:htuR!"ur tu:p.iycrc.t.m. 

Unlrl:c 1\nn.-~t;11C;fa Pal· 

a!Mlt.ml .-11>:.1 S1L-;e11 Miles. M r 
Crhcafuli l"'5 ool !M:l'l led il ll 
im;i ge1'.lhim1ot"U~tif1:8lhi= 
flu ~•RC'dnaliOf'I 

Op,po!ltloo LC'acler ti?Vffl 

Mi~LISild~in1aL.est11o 1l~ 
Quc£-n~larnl H~h Dira1or­
C..m~,I D:1vid R.~ i!rm 
!11'xi\.ll th1• 8(Wl:'mrrlll"'ll l 'i. 

~Jt<IJn, oo l'Olltknll)' 
d ~ h.a:!1111.ta l b.Jil tfin~ ad­
~im'li!, 

Mr Mil~ il.'11.ai Dr R<11CO 
grm if.inhis;tL'"flgJ hy L~­
Cl'.I\~ fl! a dlnklari, he! bod ('\'ff 

~"t'I at1 ein~tgt•.11cy depart­
n1~nt "cn."t'-:rluatm:..1 b«-.u.ti1!~ 
tii! 1111,c h.id inurifl0l"l"1t 
t n011ihlyr of Q;•l'."l'.'ric:Wld 
Healtll'scal)JtalproJ:l'ilm-r' 

W~• lfifi.ffl!illa. RSV~r1d 
CU¥irl-19 ~Ltllfilia. 'lfi'-"R' l'.k­
bye:l oo Tbu~ .ind re 
b,;.rd O.ll ~ny !illftcrnoon 
Jrnt o,-. rnloor., brlort Mr 
Nitt1olls.ooded lus a~ 1Ci! 
atpa:rl iamcntaryot'!'Slim.l'!c,.. 

The \U,lmlllli ~ ;i]ed lhe 

t1118(1illl, ~r:lili Or~ lhe- !ila.11/:j 
ht!-al th ~ l'llilh .au <wc.r­
~ of117 p1"1lic IK;L"l tlil.il IN.l 
:Ar..TO:i5 QIXffl.sllll.'ld tw:i 1110(­
<UJ)l t'd eacl> dBJ I)! p;ru,tll> 
'16ilbflll 

Q1Jt.'t.'11!J.mllt ,•au:i11;1lioo 
n 1~l!l..1111o ngtbt!11o'f1BI. in the 
nntion,wi.hJlll'l l]~p(T'rc-nl 
of peq,Jle [l ~d I t(l-'S(l ,.cd­
nfili't.l - coniJKJ~ lo 19 per 
o..'flt inNS\\.'.ind23pl'l'cenlin 
Viclm"i il. 

In die rnott,,1lntn11~c-11yc 
br-M'l<-ti p('(lp,lco~•cr ~ .9J 
per «'Ill cl !M),ple h:he re­
o=in"llllxja, - j~tbe4crn•th~ 
60 ptT~t ru1rmal avt' rnge. 

111 cst ln)Mo:}.llr i il eoi: alS(I 
qu.cstloocd Quc-cnslR11.d 
He-Jl~t~ aoout hl)'fl. mucl~ l\1lli:I· 
ing it ha.d a!Jocilt~ Lu il!s~'\lt'I 
uifetymtUlcn;1tk.ding01m 
l)t1is_n tltt'ifi1Q11cinl}~T 

'\\'e to1dmsllllld 11101 that 
lwHlmg~ IJec,,cul "be~. 

Mr Nimulb dial n!Jo! dim:lly 
~~~, ~111 ~xf .I M.m, tQfet_:.• 

.!tl)(ial 11~iil l:iu~ail!,l'I ...,a~ 
t1n.guttl~ 1.1:mler a SU.Sm com­
muni~tion'li lmdgt•I 11mridl'll 
to QlOC<fl!land H«1~h. 

ome-S4tX.I-.OOOl:iit5bcet1 al­
hx.--al«I to deli \~f si.h, ctw.:k 
dinici and GP 1r.&.i.11in-1:, iH tt-­
,s i1• 1:1l ~mfld., ~,;,,1 itl 

It DfOITIJll<'d Mr M iki;: •o 
dotrn tlie fund!•~ hod been 
'"quii!lh,•S:i.: r:IJtf)e(l"b,· Llu~Ll' P. 

"Qui!eru:lartd ~ lhie .sk.:in 
QlllX'l'~it.ilofthewortd;md 
iMlffid of drh.•i11;& ctiA rigr .. 
DovldCrl»IUl!lh3>lllrownJn 
lfleiO'ltoe~• ti said 

Ltw,i,::i ;ibure,,l.-.il.ed ateti­
rna'll"S Q ueemland ~ not of­
fcnAH, <i ~ 11,,/id)' f\n1'rll,J IVJ:' 
~ r.·locdesJ)lte-aS42ml1~1CSl­
oM!fltat.'Ml1t.wpro,gmmt1Je-10 
JtlrlJLJIJ I. 

Labar in ~t...rcli 1014 trn.­
m;rnnQl'd, -M pArt oft~ 
\\'001cn •nd Girts trot'IQ'. 
L \1 I; wouh1 be fu1xh.'d. fol' peo­
pl~M'itbcucnplexmeLlictl~'C!n­
tli tic-i~ from July l. 

Mr Nleh(.1 ll !i ~ idl~!lr'!:1l1! 
wa~1111tb'piifl.8 a •fai:rly :nO· 
,i;intulreviL"Wof the m l1-,". 

"That scr•kt WM rKJt In 
~. hai1 not ~n pul lo 
t:ftce-,iJ)(ll'l&tlOOl~ilad­
l"lfJ:U.t.it)'prOYiilt-tl ft:9' .! !i. ill lhe 
rim~ r.4 t~dt., R8f"(lr~wem • 
rrwnl ~d lh11I 1hr rT"ynbti,;1115 
11n Jlla~e ,n rol:Jtloo to ~ Wl;'r(I 
inailtqual~ .. ~Jaid. 

L,hor l1e:ilth 1po~e.sm.1n 
>.li! rk Bailey 115hd Dr Rosen· 
grm whs Qlltffldlmll 1-l~l~h 
hod riot pot 0.11 rnmrm111i­
eaLio,~t.11n(x.mcil'J.8 tt.eserYICi! 
WlJIUl i.l !Ki l ~ .1rt ~planned. 

Mr ~ icholl1-.,1itl: 'T n-f!K-
~ln.c:'d ftiu t t:OOIFJRX'flt;:(' • 
moot of lhc- As ~cd 
K~fit'O(hKli\.'t! T L"lflOOh>gy Act 
tla!i been d~fft'ftd by ~ 
moolM to Ilic lst (Ir Mnrch 
2026bn~Qfl:Mh-iQ('fr<Jm thc 
ci..r health otllM to allow 
pt(li)erroflSUlt800i, wiU1 rel­
cvant .st.1bh10JL!ft:s," hie .:1:iiil.. 
Edltml■L Pl!i7 
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Queensland Health bosses h ,an1d 1ed 
talking p 1oints ahead of Esti1Dates 
,grilling 
Quee[rllslandl !H ealth execul:Jives are undedh.e pump al Estimates this morni111,& uith a him.rout in elediive :surgery 

figures revea !ed straight up. 

U C elill5 A 

f ini-sterfur H:eaHh andA:mbul.mce Se_rvices.Tim 
-crure: Li i'Gdst:on 

Queens']a.JiLd Health executives 'lave been handed 'tulling points hefor,e their appearance at 
Pa.diamentary E.stmia.tes on Fciday,. 

n- ,comes one 1rear after executives • T&e offered media training m1,cler the fonner Labor govenmumt 
iin prepMation of a pm-el! ·· . tioo _grilling about tlie state's straggling h.osp,iiW. and health system. 

OLLO\ OUJl L · . , BLOG B. LO\l\f 

It · uod, •. ear 1,1 as written. b~ Queensland. Health 
c mm.uni. • · ti.on . team and i.ocfod d previ.ou pu bb statem1 nts th, d pamn • nt had m de . 

A eeo land H aJith sp ke man aid there , ~ n thi.og u o utd uh '.lut th taikin p int · and tipped 
execun • es i.n other d partment recei d th me • upp rt 
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Queen sland Health Direcfor-&m eral Dr David RoseJilgreJil. lPic'rure: New:sWire f Sarah M :rshall 

'Eadii. year 1Qoeens]and Heal th prepar-e · 

exec.un'\l·es and departmenta] exer•uti. "e 

to • up_po:rt H pita] and He.alt'.11 Servi ehief 

ai:d. 

-~ ~·ntive · ma · refer to ·IJh.e ntarteriaJl · art their di ,•ret i.on bm it is :n t mrundatoey. 

The d - mer.it, b lbelled Statewide liitl 3.glld.& _pF-ovides , ·LE_ggested :r-e pan e to e.xetutiives if they alie 

asked que • non ahmlft potential[; , n i.bve topic . 

It i.'il llnde :. to , d exe •uti e ·e.IF , · iven t:akin'.g .P , ]nts ailb ut the oe ' govem.:ment's liea.1-time· hoopiita] 

data and en . ura. ed to promote benefits to, patients. 

U ~ de p i.te a bri.efiog note to Healltn liitli.n] · e .IF Tim Ni ·hoU_q ea d i.er tlri year . ar.n]ng :ut could cau 

patients to make .P , OFl . -mformed det: i.s:Eom about 1;,' h r ·h eme:1rgen • - de_partme:nt 'to vi i t 
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H inge nu1n be r of u1ental healtlt calls to QAS 

QtleeJi!!sbnd Amlmhnce Service Onnmissi.oner Craig Emery i\s being 
as~ about · .m.rkfuree plaim1mg and its calls. 

He r,eveaJ!ed QAS took 8:1 o oo tripl!e-o calls for ment:a1 health m acuJte 
behaviora:] disturbm.ce bst year-,. 

ueone.erEEingly, the ili • age gn:mrp that"s most prevaJleot is those hen een 
Jl5 and 29 .,.Tears old and it's an emergm.g and grovring part of our 
business,' he said 

:l\tlr Emery said QAS had an eight-year , Tmldoriee :pipeline to pllID fur 
.sta.t,e popu]a.tion gm rtn. 

'1· e find that · .11.fuio a.horn plus or Hil.lllllS 1 per ,0011t .;-e _get the grm ;rth 
right oot it i\s said it''s ili • oomplexity of the ch.a.ngin,g nature of the 
:patient that is a little hit harder to pi!edict, ~ he said 

12:0B ' r Aug 01 20Q.5 

o ,g1n.arau tee ntajo r ge nde r service 1~1e'Vie1,v 
'will b e n 11,ade 1n1blic 

Heah'i :Minist,er Tim Nicholls has [,efused to ,oonfum that the results of 
ilie reviev into 1QueeDsfand's gender care service and the use of puhert, 
blockers for chil!dr,eu aged m1der t.8. 

uprofessor (Ruth)i Vine and her comnrittee and he[. fellow r,evie\ Ters 
have a vecy, ride rnmit , im1clurnng reoommendati.oos as to hm her 
advice i\s treated " he said. 

ulv e dea:i]y said th.at the cabinet and ilie goverm:[11.ent l rill ,oonsider the 
advice by by ]?rotessor • • ine and i iwl be guidedl and ,vii not preempt 
ilie decisi ons of cabinet" 
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:I!. -39 Aug 01, 2oes 

Labor p1·obe . axing o f pnblicly n111d 1ed IVF 
se1-viee 

QtleeJillsbnd is not offeriiiJJg a publicly-funded l\i'f' service despite a 
'42m inv.e.stmruillt illl!dl the program due to start Ju]y 1. 

Labor in MM,ch 2024 dillilOlillce.d as p_art of the Women a!Ild Girls 
Strategy, WF lwdd be :hmdedl for people , rn:h complex n11.erneal 
,oonditions from July 1. 

au,fnewsfqueen::iandl1 ·wqueen!!:iand-hea'll:h-bosses-handed- ing-plinls-ahead-of'.e • -glii lling,~il.te-i:: 

QJd ,execu .e-s" in91 po:ints w ,crui!:ia'I es ates hearfng1 ,exposed I The Cooliieti 

• LI. nsfa.od He.alltih DiF ··tcrF- Gen r-,d Da .. id Ro emg, n. at ti.mate 
re ealed • do oat have a puldi • funded! IVF • e.ni • in. 11 u ensJ!and at 
·th.is p int in time . 

Health Mio1 • t F Tim Ni.ch ll 

'1'h t servr ·e a not i.n plate had n t be n put n1 pll,u:.-:e, and bad 111 t 

been adequate] provid d : , >t as at the time of th.e chan.ge .'.lf 
• ernmeot and that the r.egulla-tioo i.n plac · n1 rellati n t i.t "' ··re 

u1adeq_· ate h, , · id. 

Lab F health • pDkie • man fark Bailey asked DF R s.engrem "' h 
t.1.eensJaod Health haid 111 t put ut •• mmunicati n. :mru uncing the 

u]d l'il t • •tart as planned. 

ollls smd: Tve xplai at the mmeo em nt f the 
: • e ·ho At:t ha been defer , d by si~. month · 

• , t o • bas ad i.ce fr m th., hief he.al th ffi r 
to alfo (ilF p r ron • uhati n ,vi.·th relevant · takeho]de' be aid. 
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:I!. -09 Aug 01, 2.oes 

S01n~one ple~e advi, .e healtb boss on spinal 
se1""V1ee capactty 

The boss of Queenslmd Health does not Imm nm r n1.any extra. sp,iina] 
injmy oodls are neededl to sernc QueenslandJ•s grm riing popufation. 

Labor Health spokemnai1ITJJ :Mark Bailey has turned ru.s questioning 
to @rols the -no ~ scrapped- nm, T Spinal Injury Unit that l\!'dS plaimiedl 
for the :Prin.c.ess J\J!e,.xandra Hospital 

It took several attempts for the question to be ,green lit, as 1r Bailey 
attempted to quizhealth]rnaols about · .~en they became ;l\\;"are the uni 
1 -m.tld not go ahead 

He t'ien asked Diroot:or-Grui!eral David :Rosengren l . hat modeling had 
he.en done to dBS!2:SS the mcreasmg capacity needls for sp,iina] injuries in 
Quoo:nil!sbnd. 

iilil.lrnewsf.l!lueen!!:iandl1 ·wlilueen!:iand-hea'll:h-bosae:s-handec:1- in.g-poin-s-:ahe.lid-of'..e! • • .-glii 

QJd .e-s· ingi po:ints fuli m.rn:ia'I es ates healling1 exposed] I The • oullieti 

ignificant thalleng • F I ue nsJand rs wh 
r.equi[le the a oom_plex • . i.11 Ni.re . 1 think 
i:t i ··eey i.mpo . • , t w • have . • e] (te that d e w rM. 
la ra[le ..... d • to h me, Mr R 

"\Ve ha ,e done ao extensi:ve • • • F a se. ment of • : , I 
injury Nice oe d. And in D I t ear we fin reJea -
of a · pin al tm--d injury ell'Vi ry m del Thi w a p]ete :lf w '.>Fk 

that went ove..r an extend d bme, had extensi taiti • n. 

But as - dl hm , man. b dl ·weir reqmred · enn e that. n d, F 

R ogren , - rd he didn t ha . that numb r ]0 front o , bJJm,. 

I I l oeedl get. , -ome ne me that • p cifi deta.il, he said. 
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:I!. -a Aug 01, 20Q5 !U@•@•• 

Health hos .es unable to .ay ' "' hen h ospitals 
"'viii b e built 

:I\rfo]tiple health bosses have beeEJJ lJilab:le to say l hen major nm. 
hospital hmMs may be fuushoo.. 

GoM Coast Hospira] m.d Heailltn Serviee chief eN:ecutive Ron Calvert 
,'¥as asked[ by L-a!bor healtn spokesman Mark Bailey 1"neo the Ilffilil 
Coomera Hospital \ rouJd h completed.. 

rerhe ,ea.pita] program is not i\m my area of expertise:,, I would suggest 
you ask fr (Sam) Sangster 1:1• fr C.alvert responded.. 

:Mr Baiey noted, as ,chl.ef of ilie region ]1e lrould have .some 
,oonversations albout the ,eap_taJ program andl fumre C,cj1p,ita]_ needs. 

:Mr Ca[ . ~ert said he ,. "ouldn1t want to misJ!e:ad the oommirttee \ iith my 
asstm.1.ptionf:t ,,, 

:Mr Baiey then a1,ltedl 1\• id · Bay Hospital and Health Semce chief 
,~ecutive Debbie Carroll about }hen the the nm T Bondaherg Ho.spitaJ 
l ·ould he fimshed. 

rerhe nm.. IBundaheFg Hospital is ,ooLtaim:tly l1lnder the auspice of Sam 
Sangst,er, wno is the dirnctor of the pmgL-am " she said . 

. au.rnewsfl!lueen!!:iandl'i ·wl!lueen!:iandJhea'll:h-bos.ses-handed- ing-pofn-s-ahead-of'..e! • -gmHing.~ 

Qld ,exeru~ ecs· • in91 points fulcr ,crue-ia'I es·· sfes tiea1ring1 ,exposed] The . ou1rieir 

u F best t iiSk him the que tr n o dlat 
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:l!.0.:31 Aug 01, 2oes 11@1@,i 

Docto rs n ot ·,vaving a.t'"onnd gov ernn, ent ·s 
~ ,1 .61n bos pital broeh u.t'"e 

Opposition Leader Steven Mille-s is eilj oyn1g 'himself today. 

The former 'neahh Minister is , rinding up Qlreffilsland Healfth Director­
Gelileral David lto.sengil!eD ,over the governmeot"s $i.,6m aidvertisirng 
,campaign for its "Hospira.I Rescue Plan" - the re: rrite of ilie 'nealth 
urnasi:mcmrn '1list . 

uI t's been mghlighted severai] times to this committee that you are a 
hilghly experiencedl emergeiilcy phy£ician , lith over 30 years experience, 
and ]I[ note that you 1.~er,e i\ndleedl the e:mergency physician Qu:eensla.udl 
Healfh aloca:tedl to .snm¥ me 'nm T an emergency dep.artment , orkedl, 
:Mr Mies said. 

uAnd so my question is vvi.th all of that 30 years experienc: • on hm. 
IDilllY occasioos ha ~e you sooD an emergency dep~rtmeot ovedoa.ded 
he.Cdmie patiffii!Jts 'had irum:rfficiem lbim. ledge of Qneensfa.ndl HeaJJtli s 
,ea pita'] program?" 

:Mr Rosengren , ra.s '·not quite sll!N' he tmderstoodl the questioo. 

'1 VheiiJJ I take histocy from a patient th.at ·i"OUld not normaly ibe part of 
aJiJJ interaction ]I[ would have wi\th a patient and ]I[ don't believe that \\<11' 

"· ould ,eapturn that n1tfil.'lltatioo/ he said 
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:l!.0.:22 Aug 0 1, 20Q5 UMli•@•i 

Little cash spent advertis:ing flu cantpaigµ 

Qu.ooDsbnd s fl.11 W1.ccmation rates: are the :nation's lo\\a-est, 
Parliamentary Estimates have hearn.. 

. aufr1ewslquee□!:iandl'. ··!l:S!queen!:iand-hea'll:h-bosse:s.-handed- ing-pJi'n~ ~ •• tes-glli llingi'l ive-c.. 

Qld ,execu es' in91 paints w ,1:n m:ia'I es ates healling1 ,exposed I Tihe Ooollieti 

DiF :tor-General Da i.d Ro ngF n revealed of the 3362 patien 
ho _p1itali.sed w1rth the tlu, 86 peF rent '!Ne[le not .acci.nartecl. 

Dr Ro · ·agren F . ea[ed . • 675,000 had been pent ad · erti.sing the free 
!liu ac i.aatmn progr-am. 
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g· ' Aug01, 20Q5 

Thousands ·waitiu,g too lou,g fo1E electh e 
surge11: 

"*''®•I 

eleome to leMth e.stima.te-s with M"nuster TI.m Nichols and L.abor1s 
:I\rlark :Hail! :y. 

Shock electiv • surgery figures have been UDveilled in the early· nriuute.s 
ofthelearing. 

Qu.OODsbnd Healtn Directm-General David Rosengren has confirmedl 
that as of ,Jlliil • iliere 1 Ter,e 5820 ready patients l aiting longer than 

1.au.fnewsfqueen!!:iandl1 "il:5/queen!!:iand-hea'll:h-bosses-handed- ing-plin~ -e· stmates-glii llin9~ive- .. 

Qti H' ,execu • .e-s' in91 points fut,- ,Cfl.Jcia'I e:s • ates lhei3ring1 ,exposed I The • ourier M' 

linicall r.ecommended , or ele .~ .' e · a r ery. 

Thl! is ,o:.F 5 '.ii. m re patient wai.ting cumpari d. to tlle · am. tim. last 
year. 

Patien n the . !i.iaitb t , r 8 - •• iali t Oulpaben.t CaF total now t ra.l 
3 '.il. _; A 09 - i.odudin. 30312 u read for car. . 
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LNP1 in 
hospital 
ads1 cash 
ske1w 
IKqdlll!lll Johns.cm 

Thrree lirn 
~WM e 

!.. p i!JO\' ' } ' 

clr.JJged Hosplta'.l Rescue- PJai1 
ilh:m was. spent enmura 1'18 
people itop!t flu\ relnatl.aM .. 

The tate ~-et'lmlent w 
pei1I: IJi,7mS]ll'Llllal'lg Ho.s-

plt:tl Resrue PbD - bic.'h kM 

been ~ - !lied to a'litack 
itlhe- fomier l.abo gi)\'errnt1ent 
- bu.I: t S61S.000 d\•ertl ll'lg 
ilt.s: rree ftlJI rel:r13tl.all!l. 

It '5: desptte- '97 irl l11!1era:a-:re­
lated d! tru cM ,D'f Juh• 27 - 13 
1111.are itlhan, the S:affll!'penoo. last 

\d 6 per ,cent or Ille 
. enl:!l h.a 'talked 

itlhe-Rl!l b~g 1!11\ rein ted. 
The 1-foSJ)ltal R~rue- PJ.m 

hM lbeei1J pfasbed oo blll:ioa'Jd 
rid medi;a ad\•erltilsfog a· oo 

was CTedlte-d b}· 
• oil 

eel!'! 

8 ' 

l)lr0gl'31'llllw 
"Puhlk- heal -

1)1'.'0IDcillll'lg 
~Hore­

Ollt' bl15fi tal 
~ ~ 

so,d3.lkm 
' ~ 

dou'btw.e 
exlrem.el}' 

, tJ, bl ber 
nmnbl!l'!l or peapl being arll-
1111k'lil:ed to h plta'.l." 

'li'hl.!l ar 3,975, pea pl I 
con1lraded 'the 111!1 i:iompil'Jle-d t C! 

itlhe- nnua'.l me-an o 28., 1 be­
ilWeen 2020 .md 2024 . 

.., mem b er!l .lllle- ri:pOlilll n 
o~g trends: of Quee 

land.er ther fee~ f pd 
b ~gor 

itlhe eflica ' 
d 
mlng. 

e-:s:a~.eff'ec­
ito lhe ti_~ 

1'r cbolk' offioe- declllled 
to oommem oo ti.e- rlElp.arll}• 
betw"e-en d\•e:rt 118 itlhe Hi» 
p.Jtill Res.oo,e Pbn rndl (1 !b 
p:11ogra I te-ad b reJ'med 

lioru to ll'rern er D.3 d 
Cwafu I' offlee.. 
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EDI U. J L 

Health must come 
before ad ·. er_ ising 
inoo • lihc Cm·id-19 paoo !mrc, 

vaa:im 1.ti:oo rates lhavt! b~-n 1i11 
s.lisadvd ~in·-

~ im 1.tio:n fatll:ll.l't'! :imd 
l!io:mmuni:ty s.c:uc:: C3m palgru 
:mnm d lihc dlik:1cy the j abs arc 
all tub ami:. 

Bu t .!:io loo is thc:: talc 
!'O\ !nlmc::nt_ 

]tis simply not do.in 1 c::nough lo 
prnmot e i:ts, 25 million fll"CC t'll.!l. 
vaa:i:rui.ti:oo program - spimaing 
just 675.,000 spruikuD£ lh • 
polic::ntially lil'e..ai in • jabs. 

By oomp;a:riiso:n, 1h • l • P 
!'O\""''fllmc::nt .!i~t thir c tim that 

amount oo an adv!M'i:i!i i:ng blitz lo 
Ml Qut..~landc::li:!:i ilIDut i:t!i 

ospital R ~UC Pl'ia:llL 
Thaf.!i l67m on billlioa:rd!:i 

brochures aml oolinc:: advcrlli in , 
championi111 , the L • P's pbm to fix 
lihc ho!ip:ital sy!ili !m ·while a11t.ack i:ng 
1!.aba.- ruir i.b health fa ifarns .. 

Thi:: 1· lospibd Rc:!!irn • Plan -
,1i'hidi i:ndudcs 111 !'lti' ho!:ipit11ls, 
ia~amloo hospi~h. and a1 plan tu 
hiir man!" rm:nttinc h !al~h staff­
has 1110 tir111Wf:ramc. 

]tis. b.asiadly po iti:cal 
pirop11gand11 0111 ~he m.,:pa1u dime 
and is happcni111 • d pilic .Pirumi tr 

David Crl!:i11fu[li du rii111g last }\E?.i.lir'!i 
ia-1 cti:o:n,. piromi!:iirll!l Quu • !flslamlms 
hi!:i 1 w mmcnl, if llilia""Cfu !ti, ·!rYl!iu:'ld 
st:· · a sia-riOl.!15- rncl'.1.!ldiion in 
marl«.."'1:irn, 1 11ncli piromotio:nil ,i;m.t!i" .. 

H :1ld-i • li:rrist ,r 1m • iciholls' 
offi • • !Ill on !he 
disp 'i' ism •~he 
Hospital Ria""SC nd OUJjab 
pir~ri· m ilil!:i • 'ng 
qt!lcsl:io111s. lo th !i 0: L'C£'_ 

Bu t !ifta'ff · 'I 5-af 
wht.."1:hc::ir th • don • 
!flo~h to · !fltli !c to get 

, o.:i:nat cli or i: lhlrCC 
liim !S lihc amount aclrirurti!sing 
ho!ipital bl.!liltlin m.- !r ,mcli above 
flu .!i ll.!i0:111 \'i'll.!i ~e ir~ 1 ht. U.!iC:: 

bxp.i1iyi::1r r::ash. 
Perhaps.au '>'OC..'W o:fth' SCil!Soo's 

hoirliii fie fi!lUJ n.n~n \'iiiU p,rnmpt a1 
Rc'Spoose f'rnm Mr- Nkholl!:i. 

Thc::li hBrvc:: n '97 i111flumm-

r-da t.{.,J dt-alhs .il5 o l1.!1ly 2'1 - 13 
mo:rc trum at the-.!iamc ~'fioo 
lll!itvca:r_ 

This :r llF ,f:J,975 p op!c ha.vc 
,i;o:nllracl ell the flu oomi;mrcd fo th!.!" 
annual m~-an or 18 t.w n 
20:2:0r and 2014_ 

bi it any \'1fofildcr OUJli hospital 
L'f'l"lcir,gcncy dt'fJ,ilirtmcnt.s sru­
umlcr sllrt."SS.. 

o far llhis lilu .!i .ll.!ion, moli than 
:ll6 . palii,im • ha,r,,.c b en 
hospiraU!i;;.,'tll S1!1lfuri111g with the- Alli 
..,.,..ilh an ai~· •co • l17 puhlic 
hospHal be& i:n Qu cn!ill.tinell bcililg 
l:!iOLl.lipi cli each imcli !.'\'Cl'}' OIi}' by 
patients ..,.,..ilh i111[1ucnm_ 

hodcingl1•. 6 pc::r et'fll o • ~!:ie­
paticnts hospi~1m .. 'tll wcr not 
,ra,i;d111allBcl 

u H l'ian Mia'lllL'C:11 A5SOirEH.ti:on. 
Ql.l.'OOnslan_d ~°Sicib"'ll.t io'k Vim 
5-afS the flu shl.ti!:itiC!:i rombin ell 
..,.,..ilh the !ow vaccina-1:io:n rail :arc 
"d 9Ply CDlltliC'.fflL'rtg~-

"Our m~oors Bfi!' r-cporfli111 ' 
wonyi111 , trurrd!i o:f Qu n!il'ia:ndtn 
ia-ilh !I" f;;.,-cli:ng fal!i,g,u ell by 
,ra,i;d111aliofil m s11_gjn: , o:r oun iu~hl 
r-cjooing the@ . l'C3CY or ..-11ccin ,. 
D r Yim · 'd 

"Thcr 1is no cfouht we :arc 
• !XpClium.cin: , 11n cxfircm!.-ly b'l!ls.y flu 
sia""asO"n, 1i'ifillh h~ght'I" numb o • 
peopl e ooi111g admitted tu hospitsl. 

"Puib'.lk hc.:ii[th c.ampalgn!i -
1a'SpCcl11ll)y mho!i prn:m.ot.in, 
vat1iDL111atio111s. - s.-e-orJtrc3J t:0 rwucc 
prc5S1!1.-e- on om hosp:ita!s a100 
wcn\'oli;h'lll doctors...~ 

No o:nc i!:i u:n.dt'I" any i □ l.!lsio:n that 
the sta~ • hBiifdJ budget i!i u:n.dt'I" 
!flD:rffi01.13i m11iin. 

Dcmand!:i f.o:r money fundin.g 
F"O"U ffiOli FCSOUFC'C:5., (o ['WUCC' 

wa"itU131 lists :and pay r ' fo.­
frnntl i:nc t111'f sTe- mclfos.'i-.. 

. l!lt wimh Qu-oons'land's. 
\ ,i;dnation 1r11~ sm@D£ the-1ivm!it 
in the country s111d an :a'lrca.dy 
di..-vll.!irati:ng fl'u ~-as:on that isn't 
wcli. pouring mo:ru.."Y into malcin , 
Ql.l.'OOnslandcr.!i awaru frne- RUJjahs 
an?" 11VaiJablc tu help lilfiJIJ !d llmm 
SL'-4.'f'l"l!i l:ikc mofilcy "'ull .!il!)Cll,l 
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